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PART I. Financial Information

Item 1. Financial Statements

MR. COOPER GROUP INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(millions of dollars, except share data)

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Mortgage servicing rights, $3,485 and $2,937 at fair value, respectively
Advances and other receivables, net of reserves of $20 and $284, respectively
Reverse mortgage interests, net of reserves of $1 and $115, respectively
Mortgage loans held for sale at fair value

Mortgage loans held for investment, $122 and $0 at fair value, respectively
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $9 and $169, respectively
Deferred tax asset

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

Unsecured senior notes, net

Advance facilities, net

Warehouse facilities, net

Payables and accrued liabilities

MSR related liabilities - nonrecourse at fair value

Mortgage servicing liabilities

Other nonrecourse debt, net

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 18)

Preferred stock at $0.00001 and $0.01 par value - 10 million and 300 million shares
authorized, 1 million and zero shares issued and outstanding for Successor and
Predecessor, respectively; aggregate liquidation preference of ten and zero dollars for
Successor and Predecessor, respectively

Common stock at $0.01 and $0.01 par value - 300 million and 1 billion shares
authorized, 90.8 million and 109.9 million shares issued for Successor and Predecessor,
respectively

Additional paid-in-capital

Retained earnings

Treasury shares at cost, zero and 12,187 thousand shares for Successor and Predecessor,
respectively

Total Mr. Cooper stockholders' equity and Nationstar stockholders' equity, respectively
Non-controlling interests

Total stockholders' equity

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Successor
September 30,
2018
(unaudited)

$ 198
332
3,500
1,174
8,886
1,681
122
102
934
799

$ 17,728

$ 2,457
596
2,888
1,342
1,123
79
7,165
15,650

1,093
984

2,078

2,078
$ 17,728

Predecessor
December 31,
2017

$ 215
360
2,941
1,706
9,984
1,891
139

121

679

$ 18,036

$ 1,874
855
3,285
1,239
1,006
41
8,014
16,314

1,131
731

(148 )

1,715

7

1,722

$ 18,036
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MR. COOPER GROUP INC.
UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(millions of dollars, except for earnings per share data)
Successor Predecessor

For the For the Three lljor. tlzle Nine

Period Period Months ero Months
January

August 1 - July 1 - Ended Ended

September July 31, September y September

31,

30,2018 2018 30,2017 2018 30, 2017
Revenues:
Service related, net $ 259 $120 $ 252 $901 $748
Net gain on mortgage loans held for sale 83 44 154 295 465
Total revenues 342 164 406 1,196 1,213
Expenses:
Salaries, wages and benefits 139 69 183 426 557
General and administrative 136 173 185 519 547
Total expenses 275 242 368 945 1,104
Other income (expenses):
Interest income 90 48 159 333 437
Interest expense (122 ) (53 ) (183 ) (388 ) (564 )
Other income (expenses) 6 — (2 ) 6 4
Total other income (expenses), net (26 ) (5 ) (26 ) 49 ) (123 )
Income before income tax expense (benefit) 41 83 )12 202 (14 )
Less: Income tax expense (benefit) 979 ) (19 )5 48 4 )
Net income (loss) 1,020 o4 )7 154 (10 )
Less: Net income attributable to non-controlling interests — — — — 1
Net income (loss) attributable to Successor/Predecessor 1,020 o4 )7 154 (11 )
Less: Undistributed earnings attributable to participating 9 . . L o
stockholders
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders $1,011 $64 )$7 $154 S$d1 )
Net income (loss) per common share attributable to
Successor/Predecessor:
Basic $11.13 $(0.65) $ 0.07 $157 $(0.11 )
Diluted $10.99 $(0.65) $ 0.07 $155 $(0.11 )

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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MR. COOPER GROUP INC.

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(millions of dollars, except share data)

Non-contrdlbag

Interests Equity

Preferred Common
Stock Stock
Total
Nationstar
Stockholders'
Shares Shares Additiona]Retaine dTreasuryEquity and
(in Amoumn AmouRtid-in EarningsShare Mr.
thousands) thousands)  Capital Amount Cooper
Stockholders'
Equity,
respectively
Predecessor
Balance at January 1, 2017 — $ 97497 $ 1 $1,122 $701 $(147) $1,677  $
Shares issued / (surrendered)
under incentive compensation — — 226 — (@3 ) — (1 ) (4 ) —
plan
Share-based compensation — — — — 13 — — 13 —
Ellt;/i(ei::;ds to non-controlling L 5 ) — o s )y —
Net income (loss) — — — — — (a1 ) — (11 ) 1
Balance at September 30, 2017 — $ 97,723 $ 1 $1,127 $690 $(148) $1,670  $
Balance at January 1, 2018 — $ 97,728 $ 1 $1,131 $731 $(148) $1,715  $
Shares issued / (surrendered)
under incentive compensation — — 450 — (6 ) — A3 ) (9 ) —
plan
Share-based compensation — — — — 17 — — 17 —
DlVldends to non-controlling L 5 . . 5 ©
interests
Net income — — — — - 154 — 154 —
Balance at July 31, 2018 — $ 98,178 $ 1 $1,147 $885 $(151) $1,882 $
Successor
Balance at August 1, 2018 1,000 $ 90806 $ 1 $1,091 $@36 ) $— $1,056 $
Shares issued under incentive . _ s L . o o o
compensation plan
Share-based compensation — — — — 2 — — 2 —
Net income — S — R — 1,020 — 1,020 —
Balance at September 30,2018 1,000 $ -90,811 $ 1 $1,093 $984 $— $2,078 $

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

5

6

7

7

$1,683
4

13

(10
$1,677
$1,722
C

17

(1

154
$1,883

$1,056

1,020
$2,078
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MR. COOPER GROUP INC.
UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(millions of dollars)

Operating Activities

Net income (loss) attributable to Successor/Predecessor

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash attributable to operating
activities:

Deferred tax benefit

Net income attributable to non-controlling interests

Net gain on mortgage loans held for sale

Reverse mortgage loan interest income

Gain on sale of assets

MSL related increased obligation

Provision for servicing reserves

Fair value changes and amortization/accretion of mortgage servicing rights/liabilities
Fair value changes in excess spread financing

Fair value changes in mortgage servicing rights financing liability
Amortization of premiums, net of discount accretion

Depreciation and amortization for property and equipment and intangible assets
Share-based compensation

Other loss

Repurchases of forward loan assets out of Ginnie Mae securitizations

Mortgage loans originated and purchased for sale, net of fees

Sales proceeds and loan payment proceeds for mortgage loans held for sale and held
for investment

Excess tax deficiency from share-based compensation

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Advances and other receivables

Reverse mortgage interests

Other assets

Payables and accrued liabilities

Net cash attributable to operating activities

Investing Activities

Acquisition, net of cash acquired

Property and equipment additions, net of disposals

Purchase of forward mortgage servicing rights, net of liabilities incurred

Net payment related to acquisition of HECM related receivables

Net proceeds from acquisition of reverse mortgage servicing portfolio and HECM
related receivables

Proceeds on sale of forward and reverse mortgage servicing rights

Successor
For the
Period
August 1 -
September
30, 2018
$ 1,020
(931 )
(83 )
(72 )
14

(27 )
26

3

15

2

(223 )
(3,458 )
3,546

76

442

(15 )
(159 )
176

(33 )
(14 )
(63 )
60

Predecessor

For

gleer'o d Nine

Janl ar Months

u yEnded

September

July

31, 30, 2017

2018

$154 $ (11 )

— 1

(295 ) (465 )

(274) 370 )
O )@ )
59 —

70 97

(177 ) 362

81 —

16 (7 )
8 63

33 44

17 13

3 5

(544 ) (943 )
(12,328(14,002 )

13,392 15,472

— )
377 71

1,601 1,226
“41 a7 )
151 (284 )
2,294 1,246
40 ) (34 )
(134 ) (28 )
a y—

— 16

— 25
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Proceeds on sale of assets — 13 16
Net cash attributable to investing activities (50 ) (162) (5 )

Continued on following page. See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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MR. COOPER GROUP INC.

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Continued)

(millions of dollars)

Financing Activities

Increase (decrease) in warehouse facilities

Increase (decrease) in advance facilities

Proceeds from issuance of HECM securitizations

Repayment of HECM securitizations

Proceeds from issuance of participating interest financing in reverse mortgage
interests

Repayment of participating interest financing in reverse mortgage interests
Proceeds from the issuance of excess spread financing

Repayment of excess spread financing

Settlement of excess spread financing

Repayment of nonrecourse debt — legacy assets

Repurchase of unsecured senior notes

Redemption and repayment of unsecured senior notes

Surrender of shares relating to stock vesting

Debt financing costs

Dividends to non-controlling interests

Net cash attributable to financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash - beginning of period
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash - end of period™®)

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Activities
Cash paid for interest expense
Net cash paid for income taxes

Successor
For the
Period
August 1 -
September
30, 2018
186

46

1 )
45

(403 )
84

(21 )
(31 )
3 )
(1,030 )
(1 )
(1,219 )
(1,093 )
1,623

$ 530

$ 135

$ _

Predecessor
For

the .

Period Nine

JanuaryMonthS
Ended

September

July 50,2017

31,
2018

(585) 351
(305 ) (298 )
759 706
(448 ) (484 )

208 437

(1,599 (1,928 )
70 —
G )0
(105 ) (159
(7 )2
62 ) (122

A N

O )«

(24 ) (11

T )G
(2,11) (1,538
21 (297
575 877
$596 $ 580

— N N N

$417 $ 577
$36  $ 92

(1) The following table provides a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash to amount reported

within the consolidated balance sheets.

Successor

For the
Period
August 1 -
September
30,2018

Predecessor
For

gleeriod Nine
Januar Months
Y4 nded
} September
July
31, 30, 2017
2018

10
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Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Total cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

7

$ 198
332
$ 530

$166 $ 224
430 356
$596 $ 580
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MR COOPER GROUP INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
(millions of dollars, unless otherwise stated)

1. Nature of Business and Basis of Presentation
Nature of Business

Mr. Cooper Group Inc. (formerly WMIH Corp. ("WMIH") and, collectively with its consolidated subsidiaries, "Mr.
Cooper", the "Company", "we", "us" or "our") provides servicing, origination and transaction-based services related to
single family residences throughout the United States with operations under its primary brands: Mr. Cooper® and
Xome®. Mr. Cooper is one of the largest home loan servicers in the country focused on delivering a variety of
servicing and lending products, services and technologies. Xome provides technology and data enhanced solutions to
homebuyers, home sellers, real estate agents and mortgage companies. The Company's corporate website is located at

WWW.mrcoopergroup.com.

Mr. Cooper, which was previously known as WMIH, is a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of
the State of Delaware since May 11, 2015. On February 12, 2018, WMIH and Wand Merger Corporation, a Delaware
corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of WMIH ("Merger Sub"), entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger
(the "Merger Agreement") with Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Inc. ("Nationstar"). On July 31, 2018 at 11:59 pm ET
("Effective Time"), pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub merged with and into Nationstar (the “Merger”),
with Nationstar continuing as a wholly-owned subsidiary of WMIH. Prior to the Merger, WMIH had limited
operations other than its reinsurance business that operated in runoff mode and focused on identifying and
consummating an accretive acquisition transaction across a broad array of industries, with a primary focus on the
financial institutions sector. As a result of the Merger, shares of Nationstar common stock were delisted from the New
York Stock Exchange. Following the Merger closing, the combined company traded on NASDAQ under the ticker
symbol “WMIH” until October 10, 2018, when WMIH changed its name to “Mr. Cooper Group Inc.” and its ticker symbol
to “COOP”.

Reverse Stock Split

On October 10, 2018, the Company completed its previously announced 1-for-12 reverse stock split. The reverse
stock split reduced the number of WMIH common shares outstanding from approximately 1,089,738,735 shares as of
October 9, 2018, to approximately 90,811,562 shares outstanding after giving effect to the reverse stock split. In
addition, the reverse stock split reduced the total authorized shares of the Company’s common stock from
3,500,000,000 to 300,000,000 and increased the par value of each share from $0.00001 per share to $0.01 per share.
All issued and outstanding share and per share amounts for Mr. Cooper included in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements have been adjusted to reflect this reverse stock split for the successor period presented.

Basis of Presentation

For the purpose of financial statement presentation, Mr. Cooper was determined to be the accounting acquirer in the
Merger, and Nationstar's assets and liabilities were recorded at estimated fair value as of the Merger Effective Time.
Mr. Cooper's interim consolidated financial statements for periods following the Merger closing are labeled
"Successor” and reflect the acquired assets and liabilities from Nationstar.

Under Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") rules, when a registrant succeeds to substantially all of the
business of another entity and the registrant’s own operations before the succession appear insignificant relative to the
operations assumed or acquired, the registrant is required to present financial information for the acquired entity (the
“Predecessor”) for all comparable periods being presented before the acquisition. Due to the acquisition, the Predecessor
and Successor financial statements have been prepared on different basis of accounting and are therefore not

12
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comparable.

Pursuant to the Merger, Nationstar is considered the predecessor company. Therefore, the Company is providing
additional information in the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements regarding
Nationstar's business for periods prior to July 31, 2018. The predecessor company financial information in this report
is labeled “Predecessor” in these consolidated interim financial statements.

The consolidated interim financial statements of the Company and Predecessor have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") for interim financial information and in accordance with the
instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X as promulgated by the SEC. Accordingly, the financial
statements do not include all of the information and footnotes required by GAAP for complete financial statements
and should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in the
Company's and Predecessor's Annual Reports on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017.

8
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The interim consolidated financial statements are unaudited; however, in the opinion of management, all adjustments
considered necessary for a fair presentation of the results of the interim periods have been included. Dollar amounts
are reported in millions, except per share data and other key metrics, unless otherwise noted.

The Company evaluated subsequent events through the date these interim consolidated financial statements were
issued.

Basis of Consolidation

The basis of consolidation described below were adopted by Nationstar and applied to the Predecessor financial
statements for the periods impacted by the adoption. The Successor's financial statements reflect the adoption of such
standards.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, its wholly-owned subsidiaries, other
entities in which the Company has a controlling financial interest and those variable interest entities ("VIE") where the
Company's wholly-owned subsidiaries are the primary beneficiaries. Assets and liabilities of VIEs and their respective
results of operations are consolidated from the date that the Company became the primary beneficiary through the date
the Company ceases to be the primary beneficiary. The Company applies the equity method of accounting to
investments where it is able to exercise significant influence, but not control, over the policies and procedures of the
entity and owns less than 50% of the voting interests. Investments in certain companies over which the Company does
not exert significant influence are accounted for as cost method investments. Intercompany balances and transactions
on consolidated entities have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The use of estimates described below were adopted by Nationstar and applied to the Predecessor financial statements
for the periods impacted by the adoption. The adoption of such standards are also considered in the Successor's
financial statements.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying
notes. Actual results could differ from these estimates due to factors such as adverse changes in the economy, changes
in interest rates, secondary market pricing for loans held for sale and derivatives, strength of underwriting and
servicing practices, changes in prepayment assumptions, declines in home prices or discrete events adversely affecting
specific borrowers, and such differences could be material.

Reclassification
Certain reclassifications have been made in the Predecessor's consolidated financial statements to conform to the
Successor's 2018 presentation. Such reclassifications did not affect total revenues or net income.

Recent Accounting Guidance Adopted

The accounting standards described below were adopted by Nationstar and applied to the Predecessor financial
statements for the periods impacted by the adoption. The adoption of such standards are also considered in the
Successor's financial statements.

Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-09, 2016-08, 2016-10, 2016-12 and 2016-20, collectively implemented as
Financial Accounting Standard Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 606 ("ASC 606")
Revenue from Contracts with Customers, provides guidance for revenue recognition. This ASC’s core principle
requires a company to recognize revenue when it transfers promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The

14
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standard also clarifies the principal versus agent considerations, providing that the evaluation must focus on whether
the entity has control of the goods or services before they are transferred to the customer. The new standard permits
the use of either the modified retrospective or full retrospective transition method. The Company's revenue is
generated from loan servicing, loan originations and services provided by Xome. Servicing revenue is comprised of
servicing fees and other ancillary fees in connection with the Company's servicing activities as well as fees earned
under subservicing arrangements. Origination revenue is comprised of fee income earned at origination of a loan,
interest income earned for the period the loans are held and gain on sale on loans upon disposition of the loan. Xome's
revenue is comprised of income earned from real estate exchange, real estate services and real estate software as a
service. The Company has performed a review of the new guidance as compared to its current accounting policies and
evaluated all services rendered to its customers as well as underlying contracts to determine the impact of this
standard to its revenue recognition process. The majority of services rendered by the Company in connection with
originations and servicing are not within the scope of ASC 606. However, all revenues from Xome fall within the
scope of ASC 606. Xome's operations are comprised of Exchange, Services and Software as a Service ("SaaS"), as
discussed below.

15
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Exchange is a national technology-enabled platform that manages and sells residential properties through its
Xome.com platform. Revenue-generating activities include commission and buyer’s premium of winning bids on
auctioned real estate owned ("REO") and short sale properties. Revenue is recognized when the performance
obligation is completed, which is at the closing of real estate transactions and there is transfer of ownership to the
buyer.

Services connects the major touch points of the real estate transactions process by providing title, escrow and
collateral valuation services for purchase, refinance and default transactions. Major revenue-generating activities
include title and escrow services and valuation services. Revenue is recognized when the performance obligation is
completed, which is when services are rendered to customers.

SaaS includes the Company’s software as a service platform which provides integrated technology, media and data
solutions to mortgage servicers, originators and multiple listing service ("MLS") organizations and associations.
Revenue-generating activities include software and platform system access and use, system implementation, software
maintenance and support, data services and any additional customized enhancement. Revenue is recognized when the
performance obligation is completed, which is generally recognized on a straight-line basis over the contractual terms.
Additionally, any additional fees owed due to usage metrics in excess of the monthly minimum will be recognized
each month under the usage-based royalties guidance of ASC 606.

Nationstar adopted ASC 606 on January 1, 2018, and there was no material impact recorded to the 2018 consolidated
statements of operations of either the Successor or Predecessor. In connection with the adoption of ASC 606,
Nationstar identified and implemented changes to its accounting policies and practices, business processes, and
controls to support the new revenue recognition standard.

Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-15, Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments ("ASU
2016-15"), relates to the Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230) and is intended to provide specific guidance to reduce
diversity in practice. ASU 2016-15 addresses the following eight cash flow classification issues: (1) debt prepayment
or debt extinguishment costs, (2) settlement of zero-coupon debt instruments or other debt instruments with coupon
interest rates that are insignificant in relation to the effective interest rate of the borrowing, (3) contingent
consideration payments made after a business combination, (4) proceeds from the settlement of life insurance claims,
(5) proceeds from the settlement of corporate owned life insurance policies, including bank-owned life insurance
policies, (6) distributions received from equity method investees, (7) beneficial interests in securitization transactions
and (8) separately identifiable cash flows and application of the predominance principle. ASU 2016-15 is effective for
annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within that reporting period,
with early adoption permitted. Nationstar adopted ASU 2016-15 in the first quarter of 2018 and determined that the
implementation of this standard had no impact on its consolidated statement of cash flows of the Predecessor and
Successor.

Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230) Restricted Cash ("ASU 2016-18"),
requires that a statement of cash flows explain the change during the period in the total cash, cash equivalents, and
amounts generally described as restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents. ASU 2016-18 is effective for annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within that reporting period, with
early adoption permitted. Nationstar adopted ASU 2016-18 in the first quarter of 2018 and retrospectively applied the
guidance to all periods presented. As a result, the consolidated financial statements of the Predecessor and Successor
includes restricted cash with cash and cash equivalents when reconciling the beginning and end of period total
amounts shown on the consolidated statements of cash flows, and changes in restricted cash are no longer presented as
a component of financing activities.

Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-01, Financial Instruments — Overall: Recognition and Measurement of
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (ASU 2016-1), ASU 2016-01 addresses certain aspects of recognition,
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measurement, presentation and disclosure of financial instruments. Among other things, ASU 2016-01 requires equity
investments (except those accounted for under the equity method of accounting or those that result in consolidation of
the investee) to be measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in net income. However, an

entity may choose to measure equity investments that do not have readily determinable fair values at cost minus
impairment, if any, plus or minus changes resulting from observable price changes in orderly transactions for the
identical or a similar investment of the same issuer. Furthermore, equity investments without readily determinable fair
values are to be assessed for impairment using a quantitative approach. ASU 2016-01 is effective for interim periods
beginning after December 15, 2017, and requires a modified retrospective approach to adoption. Nationstar

adopted ASU 2016-01 in the first quarter of 2018, and the implementation of this standard did not have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Predecessor and Successor.

10
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Recent Accounting Guidance Not Yet Adopted

Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) ("ASU 2016-02"), No.2018-10, Codification
Improvements to Topic 842, Leases ("ASU 2018-10"), and No. 2018-11, Leases (Topic 842): Targeted Improvements
("ASU 2018-11"), primarily impact lessee accounting by requiring the recognition of a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding lease liability on the balance sheet for long-term lease agreements. ASU 2016-02 requires the
recognition of a lease liability that is equal to the present value of all reasonably certain lease payments. The
right-of-use asset will be based on the liability, subject to adjustment for initial direct costs. Lease agreements with
terms 12 months or less are permitted to be excluded from the balance sheet. In general, leases will be amortized on a
straight-line basis with the exception of finance lease agreements. ASU 2018-10 and ASU 2018-11 affect narrow
aspects of the guidance issued in the amendments in ASU 2016-02. ASU 2018-11 specifically relieves companies of
the requirement to present prior comparative years' results when they adopt ASU 2016-02 and gives companies the
option to recognize the cumulative effect of applying ASU 2016-02 to lease assets and liabilities as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained earnings. ASU 2016-02, ASU 2018-10, and ASU 2018-11 are effective for the
Company for its interim periods beginning after December 15, 2018, with early adoption permitted. The Company
currently plans to adopt this standard in the first quarter of 2019 using the modified retrospective approach and will
recognize a cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings in that period. The Company
will elect an optional practical expedient to retain its current classification of leases. Based on the current lease
portfolio, the Company anticipates recognizing a lease liability and related right-of-use asset on the balance sheet.
However, the impact of the adoption of the standard will depend on the Company's lease portfolio as of adoption date
and is not expected to have a material impact on the statement of operations.

Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326) ("ASU 2016-13"),
requires expected credit losses for financial instruments held at the reporting date to be measured based on historical
experience, current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts. The update eliminates the probable initial
recognition threshold in current GAAP and instead reflects an entity’s current estimate of all expected credit losses.
Previously, when credit losses were measured under GAAP, an entity generally only considered past events and
current conditions in measuring the incurred loss. ASU 2016-13 is effective for interim periods beginning after
December 15, 2019. The Company is currently evaluating the potential impact of ASU 2016-13 on its consolidated
financial statements.

Accounting Standards Update No. 2017-04, Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment ("ASU 2017-04"),
simplifies the accounting for goodwill impairment for all entities by requiring impairment charges to be based on the
first step in today’s two-step impairment test under ASC Topic 350, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other. ASU 2017-04 is
effective for the Company for its annual or any interim goodwill impairment tests in fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2019. ASU 2017-04 will be adopted prospectively. Early adoption is permitted for interim or annual
goodwill impairment tests performed on testing dates after January 1, 2017. The Company is currently evaluating the
potential impact of ASU 2017-04 on its consolidated financial statements.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies described below were implemented by Nationstar and applied to the Predecessor's
financial statements, unless otherwise noted. Upon the consummation of the Merger, the Company adopted these
significant accounting policies, which are applicable to the Successor's financial statements.

Restricted Cash

With respect to the Servicing segment, restricted cash includes recoveries received from borrowers or investors on
advances pledged to advance facilities and to advance facilities structured as special purposes entities that require
certain level of restricted cash. With respect to the Originations segment, restricted cash includes (i) principal received
from borrowers on originated loans pledged to a warehouse facility and (ii) guarantee fees collected on behalf and
payable to either Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac on a monthly basis.
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Advances and Other Receivables, Net

The Company advances funds to or on behalf of the investors when the borrower fails to meet contractual payments
(e.g., principal, interest, property taxes, insurance) in accordance with terms of its servicing agreements. Other
receivables consist of advances funded to maintain and market underlying loan collateral through foreclosure and
ultimate liquidation on behalf of the investors. Advances are recovered from borrowers for performing loans and from
the investors and loan proceeds for non-performing loans.

The Company may also acquire servicer advances in connection with the acquisition of mortgage servicing rights
("MSR"). These advances are recorded at their relative fair value amounts upon acquisition. The Company records
receivables upon determining that collection of amounts due from loan proceeds, investors, mortgage insurers or prior
servicers is probable. Reserves related to recoverability of advances and other receivables are discussed below in
Reserves for Forward Servicing Activity.

11

19



Edgar Filing: Mr. Cooper Group Inc. - Form 10-Q

As a result of the WMIH merger, the Advances and Other Receivables assets were recorded at their estimated fair
value as of the acquisition date. Recording the estimated fair value resulted in a discount within Advances and Other
Receivables. Subsequently, this discount will be utilized as the advance balances associated with the discount are
released through recoveries or write-offs.

Mortgage Loans Held for Sale

The Company originates prime residential mortgage loans with the intention of selling such loans on a
servicing-retained basis in the secondary market. As these loans are originated with intent to sell, the loans are
classified as held for sale, and the Company has elected to measure these loans held for sale at fair value. The
Company estimates fair value of mortgage loans held for sale by evaluating a variety of market indicators, including
recent trades and outstanding commitments, calculated on an aggregate basis. In connection with the Company’s
election to measure originated mortgage loans held for sale at fair value, the Company records the loan originations
fees when earned, net of direct loan originations costs associated with these loans. Loan origination fees, gains or
losses recognized upon sale of loans and fair value adjustments are recorded in net gain on sale of mortgage loans held
for sale in the consolidated statements of operations.

The Company may repurchase loans that were previously transferred to Ginnie Mae if those loans meet certain
criteria, including being delinquent greater than 90 days. It is the Company's intention to sell such loans; therefore, the
Company classifies such loans as loans held for sale and has elected to measure these repurchased loans at fair value.
Mortgage Loans Held for Investment

Mortgage loans held for investment primarily consist of nonconforming or subprime mortgage loans that were
transferred in 2009 from mortgage loans held for sale at fair value. In connection with the Merger, the Company
elected the fair value option for mortgage loans held for investment effective August 1, 2018. The Company
determines the fair value of loans held for investment, on a recurring basis, based on various underlying attributes
such as market participants' views, loan delinquency, recent observable loan pricing and sales for similar loans,
individual loan characteristics and internal market evaluation. These internal market evaluations require the use of
judgment by the Company and can have a significant impact on the determination of the loan’s fair value. The
Predecessor recorded mortgage loans held for investment at amortized cost.

Reverse Mortgage Interests, Net

Reverse mortgage interests are comprised of the Company’s interest in reverse mortgage loans (participating interests
in Home Equity Conversion Mortgages ("HECMs") mortgage-backed security (“HMBS”) loans, unsecuritized interests
and other interests securitized) as well as related claims receivables and real estate owned ("REQO") related
receivables. The Company primarily acquires and services interests in reverse mortgage loans insured by the Federal
Housing Administration ("FHA") known as HECMs. HECMs provide seniors aged 62 and older with a loan secured
by their home which can be taken as a lump sum, line of credit, or scheduled payments. HECM loan balances grow
over the loan term through borrower draws of scheduled payments or line of credit draws as well as through the
accrual of interest, servicing fees and FHA mortgage insurance premiums. In accordance with FHA guidelines,
HECMs are designed to repay through foreclosure and subsequent liquidation of loan collateral after the loan becomes
due and payable. Shortfalls experienced by the servicer of the HECM through the foreclosure and liquidation process
can be claimed to FHA in accordance with applicable guidelines.

The Company records financial and non-financial assets acquired and liabilities assumed at relative fair value. Any
premium or discount associated with the recording of the assets is amortized or accreted, respectively, ratably over the
expected life of the portfolio and recognized into amortization expense and interest income, respectively. As the
HECM loan moves through the foreclosure and claims process, the Company classifies reverse mortgage interests as
REO related receivables and HECM related receivables, respectively. Borrower draws, mortgage insurance premiums
funded by the Company, and the accrual of interest and servicing fees are capitalized and recorded as reverse
mortgage interests within the Company's consolidated balance sheets. Interest income is accrued monthly within the
consolidated statements of operations based upon the borrower interest rates. The Company includes the cash outflow
from funding these amounts as operating activities in the consolidated statements of cash flow as a component of
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reverse mortgage interests.

The Company is an authorized Ginnie Mae ("GNMA") HMBS program issuer and servicer. In accordance with
GNMA HMBS program guidelines, borrower draws of scheduled payments or line of credit draws, servicing fee and
interest accruals and mortgage insurance premium accruals are eligible for HMBS participation securitizations as each
of these items increases underlying HECM loan balances. The Company pools and securitizes such eligible items into
GNMA HMBS as issuer and servicer. In accordance with the HMBS program, issuers are responsible for purchasing
HECM loans out of the HMBS pool when the outstanding principal balance of the related HECM loan is equal or
greater than 98% of the maximum claim amount at which point the HECM loans are no longer eligible to remain in
the HMBS pool. Upon purchase from the HMBS pool, the Company will assign active HECM loans to FHA or a prior
servicer (as applicable and permitted by acquisition agreements) or service inactive HECM loans through foreclosure
and liquidation. Based upon the structure of the GNMA HMBS program, the Company has determined that the
securitizations of the HECM loans into HMBS pools do not meet all requirements for sale accounting. Accordingly,
these

12
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transactions are accounted for as secured borrowings. If the Company has repurchased an inactive HECM loan that
cannot be assigned to FHA, the Company may pool and securitize these loans into a private HECM securitization.
These securitizations are also recorded as secured borrowings in the consolidated balance sheets. Interest expense on
the participating interest financing is accrued monthly based upon the underlying HMBS rates and is recorded to
interest expense in the consolidated statements of operations. Both the acquisition and assumption of HECM loans and
related GNMA HMBS debt are presented as investing and financing activities, respectively, in the consolidated
statements of cash flows. Subsequent proceeds received from securitizations, and subsequent repayments on the
securitized debt are presented as financing activities in the consolidated statements of cash flows. Reserves related to
recoverability of reverse mortgage interests are discussed below in Reserves for Reverse Mortgage Interests.

As a result of the Merger, the reverse mortgage interest assets were recorded at their estimated fair value as of the
acquisition date. Recording the estimated fair value resulted in a premium on the participating interests in HMBS
loans and a discount on the unsecuritized interests and other interests securitized within reverse mortgage interests.
Subsequently, the premium and the discount will be amortized and accreted, respectively, to other income, based on
discounted cash flows that will be updated on a quarterly basis.

Mortgage Servicing Rights

The Company recognizes the rights to service mortgage loans for others, or MSRs, whether acquired or as a result of
the sale of loans the Company originates with servicing retained, as assets. The Company initially records all MSRs at
fair value. MSRs related to reverse mortgages are subsequently recorded at amortized cost. The Company has elected
to subsequently measure forward MSRs at fair value.

For MSRs initially recorded and subsequently measured at fair value, the fair value of the MSRs is based upon the
present value of the expected future net cash flows related to servicing the underlying loans. The Company determines
the fair value of the MSRs by the use of a discounted cash flow model which incorporates prepayment speeds,
delinquencies, discount rate, ancillary revenues and other assumptions (including costs to service) that management
believes are consistent with the assumptions that other similar market participants use in valuing the MSRs. The credit
quality and stated interest rates of the forward loans underlying the MSRs affects the assumptions used in the cash
flow models. The Company obtains third-party valuations quarterly to assess the reasonableness of the fair value
calculated by the cash flow model. The Company receives a base servicing fee annually on the outstanding principal
balances of the loans, which is collected from investors.

Additionally, the Company owns servicing rights for certain reverse mortgage loans. For this separate class of
servicing rights, the Company initially records a MSR or mortgage servicing liability ("MSL") on the acquisition date
based on the fair value of the future cash flows associated with the pool and whether adequate compensation is to be
received for servicing. The Company applies the amortized cost method for subsequent measurement of the loan pools
with the capitalized cost of the MSRs amortized in proportion and over the period of the estimated net future servicing
income and the MSL accreted ratably over the expected life of the portfolio. The expected period of the estimated net
servicing income is based, in part, on the expected prepayment period of the underlying mortgages. The Company
adjusts MSR amortization and MSL accretion prospectively in response to changes in estimated projections of future
cash flows. Reverse MSRs and MSLs are stratified and evaluated each reporting period for impairment or increased
obligation, as applicable, based on predominant risk characteristics of the underlying serviced loans. These
stratification characteristics include investor, loan type (fixed or adjustable rate), term and interest rate. Impairment of
the MSR or additional obligation associated with the MSL are recorded through a valuation allowance, unless
considered other-than-temporary, and are recognized as a charge to general and administrative expense. Amounts
amortized or accreted are recognized as an adjustment to service related revenue, net, along with monthly servicing
fees received, generally stated at a fixed rate per loan.

MSR Related Liabilities - Nonrecourse
Excess Spread Financing
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In conjunction with the Company's acquisition of certain MSRs on various pools of residential mortgage loans (the
"Portfolios"), the Company has entered into sale and assignment agreements related to its right to servicing fees, under
which the Company sells to third parties the right to receive a portion of the excess cash flow generated from the
Portfolios after receipt of a fixed base servicing fee per loan. The sale of these rights is accounted for as secured
borrowings, with the total proceeds received being recorded as a component of MSR related liabilities - nonrecourse
at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets. The Company determines the effective interest rate on these liabilities
and allocates total repayments between interest expense and the outstanding liability.

13
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The Company has elected to measure the outstanding financings related to the excess spread financing agreements at
fair value with all changes in fair value recorded as a charge or credit to service related revenue, net in the
consolidated statements of operations. The fair value on excess spread financing is based on the present value of
future expected discounted cash flows with the discount rate approximating current market value.

Mortgage Servicing Rights Financing

From time to time, the Company enters into certain transactions with third parties to sell a contractually specified base
fee component of certain MSRs and servicer advances under specified terms. The Company evaluates these
transactions to determine if they are sales or secured borrowings. When these transfers qualify for sale treatment, the
Company derecognizes the transferred assets in its consolidated balance sheets. The Company has determined that, for
a portion of these transactions, the related MSR's sales are contingent on the receipt of consents from various third
parties. Until these required consents are obtained, for accounting purposes, legal ownership of the MSRs continues to
reside with the Company. The Company continues to account for the MSRs in its consolidated balance sheets. In
addition, the Company records a mortgage servicing rights financing liability associated with this financing
transaction. Counterparty payments related to this financing arrangement are recorded as an adjustment to the
Company's service related revenues.

The Company has elected to measure the mortgage servicing rights financing liabilities at fair value with all changes
in fair value recorded as a charge or credit to service related revenue, net, in the consolidated statements of operations.
The fair value on mortgage servicing right financings is based on the present value of future expected discounted cash
flows with the discount rate approximating current market value for similar financial instruments.

Participating Interest Financing

The Company periodically securitizes participating interests in HECM loans (mainly borrower draws, mortgage
insurance premium and interest) into HMBS which are sold to third-party security holders and guaranteed by GNMA.
The securitization transactions are accounted for as secured borrowings with the obligations to the HMBS presented
as participating interest financing included within other nonrecourse debt in the Company's consolidated balance
sheets. Issuance or acquisition of HMBS is presented as a financing activity in the consolidated statements of cash
flow. Interest is accrued monthly based upon the stated HMBS rates to interest expense in the consolidated statements
of operations. HMBS issuance premiums or discounts are deferred as a component of the participating interest
financing and amortized or accreted, respectively, to interest expense over the life of the HMBS on an effective
interest method.

Revenues

The Company recognizes revenue from the services provided when the revenue is realized or realizable and earned,
which is generally when all of the following criteria are met: (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; (2)
delivery has occurred or services have been performed; (3) the seller’s price to the buyer is fixed or determinable; and
(4) collectability is reasonably assured.

Revenues from Forward Servicing Activities

Service related revenues primarily include contractually specified servicing fees, late charges and other ancillary
revenues. The servicing fees are based on a contractual percentage of the outstanding principal balance and recognized
as revenue as earned, which is generally upon collection of the payments from the borrower. Corresponding loan
servicing costs are charged to expense as incurred. The Company recognizes ancillary revenues as they are earned,
which is generally upon collection of the payments from the borrower.

In addition, the Company receives various fees in the course of providing servicing on its various portfolios. These
fees include modification fees for modifications performed outside of government programs, modification fees for
modifications pursuant to various government programs, and incentive fees for servicing performance on specific
government-sponsored entities ("GSE") portfolios. Fees recorded on modifications of mortgage loans serviced by the
Company for others are recognized on collection and are recorded as a component of service related revenues. Fees
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recorded on modifications pursuant to various government programs are recognized based upon completion of all

necessary steps by the Company and the minimum loan performance time frame to establish eligibility for the fee.

Revenue earned on modifications pursuant to various government programs is included as a component of service
related revenues. Incentive fees for servicing performance on specific GSE portfolios are recognized as various
incentive standards are achieved and are recorded as a component of service related revenues.

The Company also acts as a subservicer for certain parties that own the underlying servicing rights and receives

subservicing fees, which are typically a stated monthly fee per loan that varies based on types of loans. Fees related to

the subserviced portfolio are accrued in the period the services are performed.
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Revenues from Origination Activities
Loan origination and other loan fees generally represent flat, per-loan fee amounts and are recognized as revenue, net
of loan origination costs, at the time the loans are funded.

Revenues from Reverse Mortgage Servicing and Reverse Mortgage Interests

The Company performs servicing of reverse mortgage loans, similar to its forward servicing business, and receives
servicing fees from investors, which is recorded in service related revenues. For reverse mortgage interests, where the
Company records entire participating interest in HECM loans, the Company accrues interest in accordance with FHA
guidelines and records interest income on the consolidated statements of operations.

Net Gain on Mortgage Loans Held for Sale

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control over
transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (i) the assets have been legally isolated from the Company, (ii)
the transferee has the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or
exchange the transferred assets, and (iii) the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets
through either (a) an agreement that entitles and obligates the Company to repurchase or redeem them before their
maturity or (b) the ability to unilaterally cause the holder to return specific assets.

Loan securitizations structured as sales, as well as whole loan sales and the resulting gains on such sales, net of any
accrual for recourse obligations, are reported in operating results during the period in which the securitization closes
or the sale occurs.

Reserves for Origination Activity

The Company provides for reserves, included within payables and accrued liabilities, in connection with loan
origination activities. Reserves on loan origination activities primarily include reserves for the repurchase of loans
from GSEs, GNMA and third-party investors primarily due to delinquency or foreclosure and are initially recorded
upon sale of the loan to a third party with subsequent reserves recorded based on repurchase demands. The provision
for reserves associated with loan origination activities is a component of net gain on mortgage loans held for sale.

The Company utilizes internal models to estimate reserves for loan origination activities based upon its expectation of
future defaults and the historical defect rate for government insured loans and is based upon judgments and
assumptions which can be influenced by many factors and may change over the life of the underlying loans, including:
(1) historical loss rate, (ii) secondary market pricing of loans; (iii) home prices and the levels of home equity; (iv) the
quality of Company's underwriting procedures; (v) borrower delinquency and default patterns; and (vi) other
Company-specific and macro-economic factors. On a quarterly basis, management corroborates these assumptions
using third-party data, where applicable.

Reserves for Forward Servicing Activity

In connection with forward loan servicing activities, the Company records reserves primarily for the recoverability of
advances, interest claims and mortgage insurance claims. Reserves for advances and other receivables associated with
loans in the MSR portfolio are considered within the MSR valuation, and the provision expense for such advances is
recorded in the mark-to-market adjustment in service related revenue. Such valuation gives consideration to the
expected cash outflows and inflows for advances and other receivables in accordance with the fair value framework.
Reserves for advances and other receivables on loans transferred out of the MSR portfolio are established within
advances and other receivables, net. As loans serviced transfer out of the MSR portfolio, any negative MSR value
associated with the loans transferred is reclassified from the MSR to the reserve within advances and other
receivables, net, to the extent such reserves continue to be required for balances remaining on the consolidated balance
sheets. Management evaluates reserves for sufficiency each reporting period, and any additional reserve requirements
or releases to reserves are recorded as a provision in general and administrative expense, as needed.

The Company records reserves for advances and other receivables and evaluates the sufficiency of such reserves
through internal models considering both historical and expected recovery rates on claims filed with government
agencies, government sponsored enterprises, vendors, prior servicer and other counterparties. Key assumptions used in
the model include but are not limited to expected recovery rates by loan types and aging of the receivable. Recovery
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of advances and other receivables is subject to significant judgment and estimates based on the Company's assessment
of its compliance with servicing guidelines, its ability to produce the necessary documentation to support claims, its
ability to support amounts from prior servicers and to effectively negotiate settlements, as needed. Management
reviews recorded advances and other receivables, and upon determination that no further recourse for recovery is
available from all means known to management, the recorded balances associated with these receivables are
written-off against the reserve.

15

27



Edgar Filing: Mr. Cooper Group Inc. - Form 10-Q

Reserves for Reverse Mortgage Interests

The Company records an allowance for reserves related to reverse mortgage interests based on unrecoverable costs
and estimates of probable loss exposures. The Company estimates reserve requirements upon the realization of a
triggering event indicating a probable loss exposure. Internal and external models are utilized to estimate loss
exposures at the loan level associated with the Company's ability to meet servicing guidelines set forth by regulatory
agencies and GSEs. Key assumptions within the models include but are not limited to expected recovery rates by loan
and borrower characteristics, foreclosure timelines, value of underlying collateral, future carrying and foreclosure
costs, and other macro-economic factors. If the calculated reserve requirements exceed the recorded allowance for
reserves and acquired discounts, a provision is recorded to general and administrative expense, as needed. Releases to
reserves are also recorded against provision in general and administrative expenses. Reserve requirements are subject
to significant judgment and estimates based on the Company's assessment of its compliance with servicing guidelines,
its ability to produce the necessary documentation to support claims, its ability to support amounts from prior
servicers and to effectively negotiate settlements, as needed. Each period, management reviews recorded reverse
mortgage interests, and upon determination that no further recourse for recovery is available from all means known to
management, the recorded balances associated with these receivables are written-off against the reserve at the loan
level.

Amounts Due from Prior Servicers

The Company services its loan portfolios under guidelines set forth by regulatory agencies and investor guidelines.
Losses can be incurred if the underlying loans are not serviced in accordance with established guidelines, resulting in
the assessment of fines and the inability to recover interest and costs incurred. Prior servicers associated with the
underlying loans may have contributed to the losses if their prior servicing practices did not allow for timely
compliance with servicing guidelines set forth. To mitigate the risk of loss to the Company, indemnification
provisions are incorporated into the executed acquisition and servicing agreements that allow for the recovery of
realized losses which can be attributed to prior servicers. As part of its servicing operations, the Company estimates
and records an asset for probable recoveries from prior servicers for their respective portion of these losses. Estimated
recoveries from prior servicers are based on management's best estimate of allocated losses among servicing parties,
terms of the indemnification provisions, prior recovery experience, current negotiations and the servicer's ability to
pay requested amounts. The Company updates its estimate of recovery each reporting period based on the facts and
circumstances known at the time. Recovery of amounts due from prior servicers is subject to significant judgment
based on the Company's assessment of the prior servicer's responsibility for losses incurred, its ability to provide
related support for such amounts and its ability to effectively negotiate settlement of amounts due from prior servicers
if needed.

Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment, net is comprised of land, building, furniture, fixtures, leasehold improvements, computer
software and computer hardware. These assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Repairs and
maintenance are expensed as incurred which is included in general and administrative expenses in the consolidated
statements of operations. Depreciation, which includes depreciation and amortization on capital leases, is recorded
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. Cost and accumulated depreciation
applicable to assets retired or sold are eliminated from the accounts, and any resulting gains or losses are recognized at
such time through a charge or credit to general and administrative expenses. Costs to internally develop computer
software are capitalized during the development stage and include external direct costs of materials and services as
well as employee costs related to time spent on the project.

The Company periodically reviews its property and equipment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of its property and equipment might not be recoverable under the recoverability test, whereby the
expected future undiscounted cash flows from the assets are estimated and compared with the carrying amount of the
assets. If the sum of the estimated undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the assets, an
impairment loss is recorded to general and administrative expense, as needed. The impairment loss is measured by
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comparing the fair value of the assets with their carrying amounts. Fair value is determined based on discounted cash
flow.

The Company evaluates all leases at inception to determine if they meet the criteria for a capital lease. A capital lease
is recorded as an acquisition of property or equipment at an amount equal to the present value of minimum lease
payments at the date of inception. Assets acquired under a capital lease are depreciated on a straight-line basis in
accordance with the Company's normal depreciation policy over the lease term and are included in property and
equipment, net, on the consolidated balance sheets. A corresponding liability is recorded representing an obligation to
make lease payments which is included in payables and accrued liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. Lease
payments are allocated between interest expense and reduction of obligation.

Leases that do not meet the capital lease criteria are accounted for as operating leases. Rental expense on operating
leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term which is included in general and administrative
expenses in the consolidated statements of operations. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the
lease terms of the respective leases or the estimated useful lives of the related assets.
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Variable Interest Entities

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into various types of on and off-balance sheet transactions with
special purpose entities ("SPEs"), which primarily consist of securitization trusts established for a limited purpose.
Generally, these SPEs are formed for the purpose of securitization transactions in which the Company transfers assets
to an SPE, which then issues to investors various forms of debt obligations supported by those assets. In these
securitization transactions, the Company typically receives cash and/or other interests in the SPE as proceeds for the
transferred assets. The Company will typically retain the right to service the transferred receivables and to repurchase
the transferred receivables from the SPE if the outstanding balance of the receivables falls to a level where the cost
exceeds the benefits of servicing the transferred receivables.

The Company evaluates its interests in each SPE for classification as a Variable Interest Entity ("VIE"). When an SPE
meets the definition of a VIE and the Company determines that the Company is the primary beneficiary, the Company
includes the SPE in its consolidated financial statements.

The Company consolidates SPEs connected with both forward and reverse mortgage activities. See Note 12,
Securitizations and Financings, for more information on Company SPEs and Note 10, Indebtedness, for certain debt
activity connected with SPEs.

Securitizations and Asset-Backed Financing Arrangements

The Company and its subsidiaries have been a transferor in connection with a number of securitizations and
asset-backed financing arrangements. The Company has continuing involvement with the financial assets of the
securitizations and the asset-backed financing arrangements. The Company has aggregated these transactions into two
groups: (1) securitizations of residential mortgage loans accounted for as sales and (2) financings of advances on loans
serviced for others accounted for as secured borrowings.

Securitizations Treated as Sales

The Company’s continuing involvement typically includes acting as servicer for the mortgage loans held by the trust
and holding beneficial interests in the trust. The Company’s responsibilities as servicer include, among other things,
collecting monthly payments, maintaining escrow accounts, providing periodic reports and managing insurance in
exchange for a contractually specified servicing fee. The beneficial interests held consist of both subordinate and
residual securities that were retained at the time of securitization. These securitizations generally do not result in
consolidation of the VIE as the beneficial interests that are held in the unconsolidated securitization trusts have no
value and no potential for significant cash flows in the future. In addition, at December 31, 2017, the Company had no
other significant assets in its consolidated financial statements related to these trusts. The Company has no obligation
to provide financial support to unconsolidated securitization trusts and has provided no such support. The creditors of
the trusts can look only to the assets of the trusts themselves for satisfaction of the debt issued by the trusts and have
no recourse against the assets of the Company. The general creditors of the Company have no claim on the assets of
the trusts. The Company’s exposure to loss as a result of its continuing involvement with the trusts is limited to the
carrying values, if any, of its investments in the residual and subordinate securities of the trusts, the MSRs that are
related to the trusts and the advances to the trusts. The Company considers the probability of loss arising from its
advances to be remote because of their position ahead of most of the other liabilities of the trusts. See Note 5,
Advances and Other Receivables, Net, and Note 4, Mortgage Servicing Rights and Related Liabilities, for additional
information regarding advances and MSRs.

Financings
The Company transfers advances on loans serviced for others to SPEs in exchange for cash. The Company

consolidates these SPEs because the Company is the primary beneficiary of the VIE.

These VIEs issue debt supported by collections on the transferred advances. The Company made these transfers under
the terms of its advance facility agreements. The Company classifies the transferred advances on its consolidated
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balance sheets as advances and classifies the related liabilities as advance facilities and other nonrecourse debt. The
SPEs use collections of the pledged advances to repay principal and interest and to pay the expenses of the entity.
Holders of the debt issued by these entities can look only to the assets of the entities themselves for satisfaction of the
debt and have no recourse against the Company.

Upon securitization of a HECM loan under the GNMA mortgage-backed securities program, ownership and legal title
to the HECM loan is transferred to GNMA. The Company accounts for these transactions as secured borrowings
because these transactions do not qualify for sale accounting treatment. An asset is recorded within reverse mortgage
interests related to the transferred HECM loan, and the financing related to the HMBS note is included in other
nonrecourse debt in Company's consolidated financial statements.

Occasionally, the Company will transfer reverse mortgage interests into private securitization trusts ("Reverse
Trusts"). The Company evaluates the Reverse Trusts to determine whether they meet the definition of a VIE, and
when the Reverse Trust meets the definition of a VIE and the Company determines that it is the primary beneficiary,
the Company will retain the securitized reverse mortgage interests on its consolidated balance sheets and recognize
the issued securities in other nonrecourse debt.
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Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative instruments are used as part of the overall strategy to manage exposure to market risks primarily associated
with fluctuations in interest rates related to originations. The Company recognizes all derivatives on its consolidated
balance sheets at fair value on a recurring basis. The Company treats all of its derivative instruments as economic
hedges; therefore none of its derivative instruments are designated as accounting hedges.

Derivative instruments utilized by the Company primarily include interest rate lock commitments ("IRLCs"), loan
purchase commitments ("LPCs"), forward Mortgage Backed Securities ("MBS") purchase commitments, Eurodollar
futures, Treasury futures, interest rate swap agreements and interest rate caps.

IRLCs represent an agreement to extend credit to a mortgage loan applicant, or an agreement to purchase a loan from
a third-party originator, whereby the interest rate on the loan is set prior to funding. The fair values of mortgage loans
held for sale, which are held in inventory awaiting sale into the secondary market, and interest rate lock commitments
are subject to changes in mortgage interest rates from the date of the commitment through the sale of the loan into the
secondary market. As a result, the Company is exposed to interest rate risk during the period from the date of the lock
commitment through (i) the lock commitment cancellation or expiration date; or (ii) the date of sale into the secondary
mortgage market. IRLCs are considered freestanding derivatives and are recorded at fair value at inception. Loan
commitments generally range between 30 and 90 days, and the Company typically sells mortgage loans within

30 days of origination. Changes in fair value subsequent to inception are based on changes in the fair value of the
underlying loan and changes in the probability that the loan will fund within the terms of the commitment. Any
changes in fair value are recorded in earnings as a component of net gain on mortgage loans held for sale.

The Company uses other derivative financial instruments, primarily forward sales commitments, to manage exposure
to interest rate risk and changes in the fair value of IRLCs and mortgage loans held for sale. These commitments are
recorded at fair value based on the dealer's market. The forward sales commitments fix the forward sales price that
will be realized in the secondary market and thereby reduce the interest rate and price risk to the Company. The
Company's expectation of the amount of its interest rate lock commitments that will ultimately close is a key factor in
determining the notional amount of derivatives used in economically hedging the position. The Company may also
enter into commitments to purchase MBS as part of its overall hedging strategy. The estimated fair values of forward
MBS are based on the exchange prices. The changes in value on the forward sales commitments and forward sales of
MBS are recorded as a charge or credit to net gain on mortgage loans held for sale.

The Company also purchases interest rate swaps, Eurodollar futures and Treasury futures to mitigate exposure to
interest rate risk related to cash flows on securitized mortgage borrowings.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets primarily consist of trade name, subservicing contracts and technology acquired through the
acquisition of Nationstar and the acquisition of Assurant Mortgage Solutions Group ("Assurant"). Those intangible
assets are deemed to have finite useful lives and are amortized either on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives (trade name, technology and internally developed software), or on a basis more representative of the time
pattern over which the benefit is derived (customer relationships).

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for impairment on an annual basis or whenever events or
circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. If the carrying value of the asset cannot be
recovered from estimated future undiscounted cash flows, the fair value of the asset is calculated using the present

value of net future cash flows. If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value, an impairment is recorded.

Goodwill
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Goodwill is initially recorded as the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired in a
business combination and is subsequently evaluated for impairment at least annually or when events or circumstances
make it more likely than not that an impairment may have occurred. Goodwill impairment testing is performed at the
reporting unit level, equivalent to a business segment or one level below. The Company has determined that each of
its operating segments (the Servicing, Originations and Xome segments) represents a reporting unit, resulting in three
total reporting units.

The Company performs its annual goodwill impairment test as of October 1 and monitors for interim triggering events
on an ongoing basis. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment utilizing either a qualitative assessment or a

quantitative goodwill impairment test. If the Company chooses to perform a qualitative assessment and determines
the fair value more likely than not exceeds the carrying value, no further evaluation is necessary. For reporting units
where the Company performs the quantitative goodwill impairment test, the Company compares the fair value of each
reporting unit, which the Company primarily determines using an income approach based on the present value of
discounted cash flows, to the respective carrying value, which
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includes goodwill. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying value, the goodwill is not considered
impaired. If the carrying value is higher than the fair value, the difference would be recognized as an impairment loss.

Loans Subject to Repurchase Rights from Ginnie Mae

For certain forward loans sold to GNMA, the Company as the issuer has the unilateral right to repurchase, without
GNMA'’s prior authorization, any individual loan in a GNMA securitization pool if that loan meets certain criteria,
including being delinquent greater than 90 days. Once the Company has the unilateral right to repurchase a delinquent
loan, the Company has effectively regained control over the loan, and under GAAP, must recognize the right to the
loan in its consolidated balance sheets and establish a corresponding repurchase liability regardless of the Company’s
intention to repurchase the loan. The Company recognizes the right to purchase these mortgage loans in other assets at
their unpaid principal balances and records a corresponding liability in payables and accrued liability for mortgage
loans eligible for repurchase in its consolidated balance sheets.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognized on loans held for sale for the period from loan funding to sale, which is typically

within 30 days. Loans are placed on non-accrual status when any portion of the principal or interest is 90 days past
due. Interest received from loans on non-accrual status is recorded as income when collected. Loans return to accrual
status when the principal and interest become current and it is probable that the amounts are fully collectible. For
individual loans that have been modified, a period of six timely payments is required before the loan is returned to an
accrual basis.

Interest income also includes interest earned on custodial cash deposits associated with the mortgage loans serviced
and interest earned on reverse mortgage interests. Reverse mortgage interests accrue as interest income in accordance
with FHA guidelines.

Share-Based Compensation

Share-based compensation is measured at the grant date, based on the calculated fair value of the award, and is
recognized as an expense over the requisite employee service period (generally the vesting period of the grant) in
salaries, wages and benefits within the consolidated statements of operations.

Adpvertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are included as part of general and administrative expenses. The
Company incurred advertising costs of $8 for the two months ended September 30, 2018. The Predecessor incurred
advertising costs of $4 and $33 for the one and seven months ended July 31, 2018, respectively, and $14 and $42 for
the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017, respectively.

Income Taxes
The Company is subject to the income tax laws of the U.S., its states and municipalities. These tax laws are complex
and subject to different interpretations by the taxpayer and the relevant governmental taxing authorities.

Deferred income taxes are determined using the balance sheet method. Deferred taxes are recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences between the consolidated financial statement carrying amounts of existing
assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax
rates that will apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered
or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized as income or expense
in the period that includes the enactment date.

The Company regularly reviews the carrying amount of its deferred tax assets to determine if the establishment of a
valuation allowance is necessary. If, based on the available evidence, it is more likely than not that all or a portion of
the Company's deferred tax assets will not be realized in future periods, a deferred tax valuation allowance is
established. Consideration is given to various positive and negative factors that could affect the realization of the
deferred tax assets. In evaluating this available evidence, management considers, among other things, historical
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financial performance, expectation of future earnings, length of statutory carryforward periods, experience with
operating tax loss and tax credit carryforwards which may expire unused, tax planning strategies and timing of
reversals of temporary differences. The Company's evaluation is based on current tax laws as well as management's
expectations of future performance.

The Company initially recognizes tax positions in the consolidated financial statements when it is more likely than not
that the position will be sustained upon examination by the tax authorities. Such tax positions are initially and
subsequently measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon
ultimate settlement with the tax authority assuming full knowledge of the position and all relevant facts. In
establishing a provision for income tax expense, the Company makes judgments and interpretations about the
application of these inherently complex tax laws within the framework of existing GAAP. The Company recognizes
interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as a component of provision for income taxes.
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On December 22, 2017, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118 ("SAB
118") to address the application of U.S. GAAP related to the enactment of the Tax Reform Act. SAB 118 provides
guidance in those situations where the accounting for certain income tax effects of the Tax Reform Act will be
incomplete by the time financial statements are issued for the reporting period that includes the enactment date. The
Company has recorded provisional amounts where the impact of the Tax Reform Act could be reasonably estimated.
Any subsequent adjustment to these amounts will be made within one year from the enactment date.

Earnings Per Share

The Company computes earnings per share using the two-class method, which is an earnings allocation formula that
determines earnings per share for common stock and any participating securities according to dividends declared
(whether paid or unpaid) and participation rights in undistributed earnings. The Series A Preferred Stock is considered
participating securities because it has dividend rights determined on an as-converted basis in the event of Company's
declaration of a dividend or distribution for common shares.

Basic net income per common share is computed by dividing net income available to common stockholders by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted net income per common share is
computed by dividing net income available to common stockholders by the sum of the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding and any dilutive securities for the period.

3. Acquisitions
Acquisition of Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Inc.

On February 12, 2018, WMIH and Merger Sub entered into the Merger Agreement with Nationstar. At the effective
time of the Merger ("Effective Time"), pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub was merged with and into
Nationstar, with Nationstar continuing as a wholly-owned subsidiary of WMIH.

Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, at the Effective Time, and as a result of the Merger, each share of
Nationstar's common stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time was converted into the
right to receive, at the election of the holder of such share, (i) $18.00 per share in cash, without interest, or

(i1) 12.7793 shares of validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable shares of WMIH common stock, par

value $0.00001 per share ("WMIH Common Stock") (the "Merger Consideration"). The Merger Consideration was
subject to automatic proration and adjustment pursuant to the Merger Agreement to ensure that the total amount of
cash paid (excluding cash paid in lieu of fractional shares) equaled approximately $1,226.

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, immediately prior to the Effective Time, subject to certain exceptions, (i) each
then-outstanding share of Nationstar restricted stock automatically vested in full and was converted into the right to
receive the Merger Consideration, as elected by the holder thereof, and (ii) each then-outstanding Nationstar restricted
stock unit, whether vested or unvested, was automatically vested in full, assumed by WMIH and converted into a
WMIH restricted stock unit entitling the holder thereof to receive upon settlement the Merger Consideration, as
elected by the holder, with respect to shares of Nationstar restricted stock.

Upon closing the Merger, all outstanding WMIH Series B Preferred Stock and all outstanding warrants to purchase
shares of WMIH common stock were converted into common stock of WMIH.

Total purchase price was approximately $1,777, consisting of cash paid of $1,226 and transferred stock valued at

$551. The purchase price was funded from available cash on hand and borrowings under senior unsecured notes (see
discussion below). Prior to the acquisition, Nationstar was a publicly-held company that earned fees through the
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delivery of servicing, origination and transaction-based services related primarily to single-family residences
throughout the United States. This acquisition marks the Company's initial entry into the mortgage servicing industry
that Nationstar operates in and is consistent with the Company's business strategy.

On July 13, 2018, Merger Sub closed the offering of $950 aggregate principal amount of 8.125% Notes due 2023 (the
2023 Notes”) and $750 aggregate principal amount of 9.125% Notes due 2026 (the “2026 Notes” and, together with the
2023 Notes, the “New Notes”). The proceeds from the New Notes were used, together with the proceeds from the
issuance of the Company’s common stock and the Company’s cash and restricted cash on hand, to consummate the
Company’s acquisition of Nationstar and the refinancing of certain of Nationstar’s existing debt and to pay related fees
and expenses. At the consummation of the acquisition,

20

37



Edgar Filing: Mr. Cooper Group Inc. - Form 10-Q

Merger Sub merged with and into Nationstar, with Nationstar continuing as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. After the Merger, the surviving subsidiary assumed all of Merger Sub’s obligations under the New Notes.

The acquisition has been accounted for in accordance with ASC 805, Business Combinations, using the acquisition
method of accounting. Under the acquisition method of accounting, the Company allocated the purchase price of the
acquisition to identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values as of the
acquisition date. The excess of the purchase price over the aggregate fair values will be recorded as goodwill within
the consolidated balance sheet. The excess of the aggregate fair value over the purchase price will be recorded as
bargain purchase gain within the consolidated statement of operations.

The table below presents the calculation of aggregate purchase price.

Purchase Price:

Converted WMIH common shares (prior to reverse stock split) in millions 394
Price per share, based on price of $1.398 for WMIH stock on July 31, 2018  $1.398

Purchase price from common stock issued 551
Purchase price from cash payment 1,226
Total purchase price $1,777

The allocation of the fair value of the acquired business was based on preliminary valuations of the estimated net fair
value of the assets acquired. The determination of fair value estimates requires management to make certain estimates
about discount rates, future expected cash flows, market conditions, and other future events that are highly subjective
in nature and may require adjustments. The Company's estimates are subject to change as the Company obtains
additional information and finalizes its review of estimates during the measurement period (up to one year from the
acquisition date). The primary areas of the preliminary allocation of fair value of consideration transferred that are not
yet finalized relate to the fair value of reverse mortgage interests and related other nonrecourse debt, advances and
other receivables and payables and accrued liabilities. Based on the preliminary allocation of fair value, no goodwill
has been recorded as the preliminary fair value of the net assets acquired exceeds the purchase price by approximately
$2. The Company has not recorded the bargain purchase gain because it has not completed its assessment of the
re-consideration criteria as specified in ASC 805, Business Combinations, which is required to be performed prior to
recording a bargain purchase gain. The Company expects to complete its assessment of the re-consideration criteria in
the fourth quarter of 2018. In addition, the bargain purchase gain or any goodwill may be adjusted pending the
completion of the valuation of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as described above. The Company will
record any adjustments to the preliminary fair value estimates in the reporting period in which the adjustments are
determined. Fair value adjustments based on updated estimates could materially affect the goodwill recorded on the
acquisition.
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The preliminary allocation of the purchase price to the acquired assets and liabilities is as follows:

Preliminary Estimated Fair Value of Net Assets Acquired:

Cash and cash equivalent $166
Restricted cash 430
Mortgage servicing rights 3,428
Advances and other receivables 1,262
Reverse mortgage interests 9,225
Mortgage loans held for sale 1,514
Mortgage loans held for investment 125
Property and equipment 96
Derivative financial instruments 64
Other assets 548
Fair value of assets acquired 16,858
Unsecured senior notes 1,830
Advance facilities 551
Warehouse facilities 2,701
Payables and accrued liabilities 1,365
MSR related liabilities—nonrecourse 1,065
Mortgage servicing liabilities 86
Derivative financial instruments 3
Other nonrecourse debt 7,583
Fair value of liabilities assumed 15,184
Total fair value of net tangible assets acquired 1,674
Intangible assets!) 103
Preliminary goodwill —
$1,777

() The following intangible assets were acquired in the Nationstar acquisition.

. Fair
Useful Life (Years) Value
Customer relationships 6 $61
Tradename () 5 8
Technology (i 3-5 11
Internally developed software(i) 2 23
Total $103

() The estimated fair values for customer relationships were measured using the excess earnings method.

(i) The estimated fair values for tradename and technology were measured using the relief-from-royalty method. This
method assumes the tradename and technology have value to the extent the owner is relieved of the obligation to pay
royalties for the benefits received from these assets.

(ii) The estimated fair values for internally developed software were measured using the replacement cost method.

WMIH incurred total acquisition costs of $92 prior to the consummation of the Merger. Additional acquisition costs
are not expected to be significant during the remainder of fiscal 2018. The acquisition costs were primarily related to
legal, accounting and consulting services and were expensed as incurred through July 31, 2018. Included in the total
acquisition costs was a transaction fee of $25 to KKR Capital Markets LLC ("KCM"), an affiliate of KKR Wand
Investors Corporation, which is WMIH's largest stockholder, for acting as a non-exclusive financial advisor to WMIH
with respect to the Merger and an arrangement fee of $7 to KCM for acting as a placement agent with respect to a
bridge financing facility in connection with the Merger that was not executed. In addition, WMIH incurred $38 of

39



Edgar Filing: Mr. Cooper Group Inc. - Form 10-Q

costs related to borrowings under the Notes, which was capitalized in debt costs.
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WMIH also paid KCM a deferred fee of $8, which initially reduced the carrying value of the Series B Preferred Stock.
This fee was payable in connection with the conversion of Series B Preferred Stock to WMIH's common stock upon
consummation of the Merger.

Included in the Predecessor's consolidated statements of operations were $27 of acquisition costs incurred by
Nationstar for the seven months ended July 31, 2018.

Included in the Successor's consolidated statements of operations were $7 of acquisition costs related to the
compensation arrangements incurred by the Company related to the merger for two months ended September 30,
2018.

The following unaudited pro forma financial information presents the combined results of operations for the three and
nine months ended September 30, 2018 as if the transaction had occurred on January 1, 2018.

Three Nine
Months Months
Ended Ended
September September
30,2018 30,2018
Pro forma total revenues $ 506 $ 1,538

Pro formanetincome $ 20 ) $ 156

The unaudited pro forma financial information above does not include the pro forma effects of the Company's
acquisition of Assurant as presented below. The above unaudited pro forma financial information is presented for
illustrative purposes only and is not indicative of the results of operations that would have actually occurred had the
Merger occurred on January 1, 2018. In addition, the unaudited pro forma financial information is not indicative of,
nor does it purport to project, the future operating results of the Company. Further, the unaudited financial information
excludes acquisition and integration costs and does not give effect to any estimated and potential cost savings or other
operating efficiencies, if any, that might result from the acquisition.

Acquisition of Assurant Mortgage Solutions Group

On August 1, 2018, Xome Holdings LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired Assurant Mortgage
Solutions Group for $35 in cash with additional consideration dependent on the achievement of certain future
performance targets. The acquisition expands Xome's footprint and grows its third-party client portfolio across its
valuation, title and field services businesses. Based on the preliminary valuations of the estimated net fair value of the
assets acquired and preliminary purchase price allocation, the acquisition resulted in $23 of intangible assets and $3 of
goodwill.

23

41



Edgar Filing: Mr. Cooper Group Inc. - Form 10-Q

4. Mortgage Servicing Rights and Related Liabilities

The following table sets forth the carrying value of the Company's and Predecessor's MSRs and the related liabilities.
Successor Predecessor
September December

MSRs and Related Liabilities 30,2018 31,2017

Forward MSRs - fair value $3485 $ 2,937
Reverse MSRs - amortized cost 15 4
Mortgage servicing rights $ 3,500 $ 2941
Mortgage servicing liabilities - amortized cost $ 79 $ 41
Excess spread financing - fair value $ 1,097 $ 996
Mortgage servicing rights financing - fair value 26 10

MSR related liabilities - nonrecourse at fair value $ 1,123  $ 1,006

Mortgage Servicing Rights

The Company owns and records at fair value the rights to service traditional residential mortgage ("forward") loans
for others either as a result of purchase transactions or from the retained servicing associated with the sales and
securitizations of loans originated. MSRs are comprised of servicing rights related to both agency and non-agency
loans.

The following table sets forth the activities of forward MSRs.
Successor  Predecessor
For the

For the Period Nine
Period January Months
MSRs - Fair Value August I -y | Ended
September 31, September
30, 2018 2018 30,2017
Fair value - beginning of period $ 3,413 $2,937 $ 3,160
Additions:
Servicing retained from mortgage loans sold 43 162 151
Purchases of servicing rights 72 144 30
Dispositions:
Sales of servicing assets(!) (63 ) 4 (24 )
Changes in fair value:
Changes in valuation inputs or assumptions used in the valuation model 65 330 (113 )
Other changes in fair value 45 ) (164 ) (248 )
Fair value - end of period $ 3,485 $3.413 $ 2,956

() Amount for the seven months ended July 31, 2018 is related to the sale of nonperforming loans, which have a
negative MSR value.

From time to time, the Company sells its ownership interest in certain MSRs and is retained as the subservicer for the
sold assets. The Company has evaluated the sale accounting requirements related to these transactions, including the
Company's continued involvement as the subservicer, and concluded that these transactions qualify for sale
accounting treatment.
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MSRs measured at fair value are segregated between credit sensitive and interest sensitive pools. Credit sensitive
pools are primarily impacted by borrower performance under specified repayment terms, which most directly impacts
involuntary prepayments and delinquency rates. Interest sensitive pools are primarily impacted by changes in
forecasted interest rates, which in turn impact voluntary prepayment speeds. The Company assesses whether acquired
portfolios are more credit sensitive or interest sensitive in nature on the date of acquisition. Numerous factors are
considered in making this assessment, including loan-to-value ratios, FICO scores, percentage of portfolio previously
modified, portfolio seasoning and similar criteria. The determination between credit sensitive and interest sensitive for
a pool is made at the date of acquisition, and no subsequent changes are made.

Credit sensitive portfolios generally consist of higher delinquency, single-family non-conforming residential forward
mortgage loans serviced for agency and non-agency investors. Interest sensitive portfolios generally consist of lower
delinquency, single-family conforming residential forward mortgage loans for agency investors.

The following table provides a breakdown of credit sensitive and interest sensitive unpaid principal balance ("UPB")
for the Company's forward MSRs.

Successor Predecessor

September 30, December 31,

2018 2017

. Fair Fair

MSRs - Sensitivity Pools UPB Value UPB Value
Credit sensitive $144,697 $1,652 $167,605 $1,572
Interest sensitive 129,789 1,833 113,775 1,365
Total $274,486 $3,485 $281,380 $2,937

The Company used the following key weighted-average inputs and assumptions in estimating the fair value of MSRs.

Successor Predecessor
) .. September 30, December

Credit Sensitive 2018 31,2017
Discount rate 11.2 % 11.4 %
Total prepayment speeds 11.2 % 15.2 %
Expected weighted-average life 6.7 years 5.7 years
Interest Sensitive
Discount rate 9.2 % 9.2 %
Total prepayment speeds 8.9 % 10.7 %
Expected weighted-average life 7.4 years 6.7 years

The following table shows the hypothetical effect on the fair value of the MSRs when applying certain unfavorable
variations of key assumptions to these assets for the dates indicated.
Total
Discount Rate  Prepayment
Speeds

X 200bps 10%  20%
MSRs - Hypothetical Sensitivities P Adverse AdverseAdverse

100

éﬁ;ﬁ;seeChange Change Change
Successor
September 30, 2018
Mortgage servicing rights $(138) $(266 ) $(117) $(227)
Predecessor
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December 31, 2017
Mortgage servicing rights $(108) $(208 ) $(118) $(227)

These hypothetical sensitivities should be evaluated with care. The effect on fair value of a 10% adverse change in
assumptions generally cannot be determined because the relationship of the change in assumptions to the fair value
may not be linear. Additionally, the impact of a variation in a particular assumption on the fair value is calculated
while holding other assumptions constant. In reality, changes in one factor may lead to changes in other factors, which
could impact the above hypothetical effects.
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Reverse Mortgage Servicing Rights and Liabilities - Amortized Cost

The Company services and subservices certain HECM reverse mortgage loans with an unpaid principal balance of
$30,660 and $35,112 as of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively. Mortgage servicing liabilities
had an ending balance of $79 and $41 as of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively. For the two
months ended September 30, 2018, the Company accreted $7 of the MSL. For the seven months ended July 31, 2018,
the Predecessor accreted $11 of the MSL and recorded other MSL adjustments of $56. For the nine months ended
September 30, 2017, the Predecessor accreted $1 of the MSL and recorded an increase to the MSL of $6. Such
accretion recorded by the Predecessor relates to previous portfolio acquisitions.

Reverse MSR had an ending balance of $15 and $4 as of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.
For the two months ended September 30, 2018, the Company recorded less than $1 of amortization. For the seven
months ended July 31, 2018, the Predecessor recorded other MSR adjustments of $4. For the nine months ended
September 30, 2017, the Predecessor amortized $1 of the MSR.

The fair value of the reverse MSR was $15 and $29 as of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.
The fair value of the MSL was $60 and $34 as of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.
Management evaluates reverse MSRs and MSLs each reporting period for impairment. Based on management's
assessment at September 30, 2018, no impairment or increased obligation was needed.

Excess Spread Financing - Fair Value

In order to finance the acquisition of certain MSRs on various Portfolios, the Company has entered into sale and
assignment agreements with a third-party associated with funds and accounts under management of BlackRock
Financial Management Inc. ("BlackRock"), a third-party associated with funds and accounts under management of
Virde Partners, Inc. ("Varde") and with certain affiliated entities formed and managed by New Residential Investment
Corp. ("New Residential"). The Company sold to such entities the right to receive a specified percentage of the excess
cash flow generated from the Portfolios after receipt of a fixed base servicing fee per loan. Servicing fees associated
with traditional MSRs can be segregated into a contractually specified base servicing fee component and an excess
servicing fee. The base servicing fee, along with ancillary income, is designed to cover costs incurred to service the
specified pool plus a reasonable profit margin. The remaining servicing fee is considered excess. The Company
retains all the base servicing fee and ancillary revenues associated with servicing the Portfolios and retains a portion
of the excess servicing fee. The Company continues to be the servicer of the Portfolios and provides all servicing and
advancing functions.

Contemporaneous with the above, the Company entered into refinanced loan obligations with New Residential,
BlackRock and Varde. Should the Company refinance any loan in the Portfolios, subject to certain limitations, it will
be required to transfer the new loan or a replacement loan of similar economic characteristics into the Portfolios. The
new or replacement loan will be governed by the same terms set forth in the sale and assignment agreement described
above, which is the primary driver of the recapture rate assumption.

The range of key assumptions used in the Company's valuation of excess spread financing are as follows.

Excess Spread Financing Prepayment Speeds ﬁi\;zr(a\g;ars) Discount Rate Recapture Rate
Successor

September 30, 2018

Low 5.9% 53 8.5% 7.6%

High 15.0% 8.5 14.0% 26.7%
Weighted-average 10.6% 6.7 10.6% 17.7%
Predecessor

December 31, 2017

Low 6.2% 4.4 8.5% 7.2%
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6.9 14.1% 30.0%
5.9 10.8% 18.7%
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The following table shows the hypothetical effect on the excess spread financing fair value when applying certain
unfavorable variations of key assumptions to these liabilities for the dates indicated.

Discount Prepayment
Rate Speeds
100 200 bps 10% 20%

Excess Spread Financing - Hypothetical Sensitivities Adverse Adverskdverse
Adveaqeange Chang€hange
Change

Successor

September 30, 2018

Excess spread financing $44 % 92 $33 § 68

Predecessor

December 31, 2017

Excess spread financing $37% 78 $34 § 71

As the cash flow assumptions utilized in determining the fair value amounts in the excess spread financing are based
on the related cash flow assumptions utilized in the financed MSRs, any fair value changes recognized in the MSRs
would inherently have an inverse impact on the carrying amount of the related excess spread financing. For example,
while an increase in discount rates would negatively impact the value of the Company's MSRs, it would reduce the
carrying value of the associated excess spread financing liability.

These hypothetical sensitivities should be evaluated with care. The effect on fair value of a 10% variation in
assumptions generally cannot be determined because the relationship of the change in assumptions to the fair value
may not be linear. Additionally, the impact of a variation in a particular assumption on the fair value is calculated
while holding other assumptions constant. In reality, changes in one factor may lead to changes in other factors, which
could impact the above hypothetical effects. Also, a positive change in the above assumptions would not necessarily
correlate with the corresponding decrease in the net carrying amount of the excess spread financing.

Mortgage Servicing Rights Financing - Fair Value

From December 2013 through June 2014, the Company entered into agreements to sell a contractually specified base
servicing fee component of certain MSRs and servicing advances under specified terms to a joint venture capitalized
by New Residential and certain unaffiliated third-party investors. The Company continues to be the named servicer,
and, for accounting purposes, ownership of the mortgage servicing rights continues to reside with the Company.
Accordingly, the Company records the MSRs and a MSR financing liability associated with this transaction in its
consolidated balance sheets.

The following table sets forth the weighted average assumptions used in the valuation of the mortgage servicing rights
financing liability.

Successor Predecessor

September December

Mortgage Servicing Rights Financing Assumptions 30,2018 31,2017

Advance financing rates 49 % 35 %
Annual advance recovery rates 182 % 232 %
27
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The following table sets forth the items comprising revenues associated with servicing loan portfolios.
Successor  Predecessor

For
For the gleerio Three gg:igzle Nine
Period July dMonths January Months
- August 1 - Ended Ended
Servicing Revenue - 1 - July
September July September 31, September
30, 2018 31, 30, 2017 2018 30, 2017
2018
Contractually specified servicing fees() $ 163 $79 $ 251 $574 $ 759
Other service-related income()(2) 18 10 40 66 126
Incentive and modification income() 8 4 19 37 63
Late fees() 14 7 22 53 67
Reverse servicing fees 13 4 16 37 43
Mark-to-market adjustments®) 24 25 (44 ) 196 (160 )
Counterparty revenue share® (26 ) (16) (53 ) (111 ) (174 )
Amortization, net of accretion® (31 ) (16) (60 ) (112 ) (187 )
Total servicing revenue $ 183 $97 $ 191 $740 $ 537

(1 Amounts include subservicing related revenues.

) In the fourth quarter of 2017, the Predecessor reevaluated presentation of adjustments related to certain Ginnie Mae
early buyout activities and reclassified $4 and $16 from other service-related income to mark-to-market adjustments
for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017, respectively. Total servicing revenue was not affected by
this reclassification adjustment.

3) Mark-to-market ("MTM") adjustments include fair value adjustments on MSR, excess spread financing and MSR
financing liabilities. The amount of MSR MTM reflected is net of cumulative incurred losses related to advances and
other receivables associated with inactive and liquidated loans that are no longer part of the MSR portfolio, and these
incurred losses have been transferred to reserves on advances and other receivables. These cumulative incurred losses
for the Company totaled $13 for the two months ended September 30, 2018. These cumulative incurred losses for the
Predecessor totaled $4 and $38 for the one and seven months ended July 31, 2018, respectively, and $15 and $53 for
the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017, respectively.

) Counterparty revenue share represents the excess servicing fee that the Company pays to the counterparties under
the excess spread financing arrangements and the payments made associated with MSRs financing arrangements.

(5) Amortization is net of excess spread accretion of $22 for the two months ended September 30, 2018, $11 and $78
for the one and seven months ended July 31, 2018, respectively, and $41 and $123 for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2017, respectively.

5. Advances and Other Receivables, Net
Advances and other receivables, net consists of the following.

Successor Predecessor
September 30,December 31,

2018 2017
Servicing advances, net of $227 and $0 discount, respectively $ 889 $ 1,599
Receivables from agencies, investors and prior servicers, net of $56 and $0 discount, 305 391
respectively
Reserves (20 ) (284 )
Total advances and other receivables, net $ 1,174 $ 1,706
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The Company and Predecessor, as loan servicer, are contractually responsible to advance funds on behalf of the
borrower and investor primarily for loan principal and interest, property taxes and hazard insurance and foreclosure
costs. Advances are primarily recovered through reimbursement from the investor, proceeds from sale of loan
collateral or mortgage insurance claims. Reserves for advances and other receivables on loans transferred out of the
MSR portfolio are established within advances and other receivables.

The Company and Predecessor estimate and record an asset for estimated recoveries to be collected from prior
servicers for their respective portion of the losses associated with the underlying loans that were not serviced in
accordance with established guidelines.
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Receivables from prior servicers totaled $84 and $134 for the Company and Predecessor's forward loan portfolio at
September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.
The following table sets forth the activities of the reserves for advances and other receivables.

Successor  Predecessor

For For the
For the the  Three Period Nine
Period Period Months January Months
Reserves for Advances and Other Receivables August 1 - July 1 Ended Ended
1 - July
September - July September 31 September
30,2018 31, 30,2017 20’18 30,2017
2018
Balance - beginning of period $ — $294 $ 236 $284 § 184
Provision and other additions(" 20 7 30 69 106
Write-offs — 4 ){as ) (56 ) (37 )
Balance - end of period $ 20 $297 $ 253 $297 $ 253

() The Company recorded a provision of $13 through the MTM adjustments in service related revenues for the two
months ended September 30, 2018 for inactive and liquidated loans that are no longer part of the MSR portfolio. The
Predecessor recorded a provision through the MTM adjustments in service related revenues of $4 and $38 for the one
and seven months ended July 31, 2018, respectively, and $15 and $53 for the three and nine months ended September
30, 2017, respectively, for inactive and liquidated loans that are no longer part of the MSR portfolio. Other additions
represent reclassifications of required reserves from other balance sheet accounts.

Purchase Discount for Advances and Other Receivables

In connection with the Merger, the Company recorded the acquired advances and other receivables at estimated fair
value as of the acquisition date, which resulted in a preliminary purchase discount of $302. The following table sets
forth the activities of the purchase discount for advances and other receivables.

Successor
For the Period
August 1 -
September 30,
2018
Receivables
from
Servicidggencies,
Advandasvestors
and Prior
Servicers
Balance - beginning of period $246 $ 56
Accretion (19 ) —
Balance - end of period $227 $ 56

Purchase Discounts

6. Reverse Mortgage Interests, Net

Reverse mortgage interests, net consists of the following.
Successor Predecessor

Reverse Mortgage Interests, Net
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September December
30,2018 31,2017
Participating interests in HECM mortgage-backed securities, net of $55 and $0 premium, $6.074 $7.107

respectively

Other interests securitized, net of $117 and $0 discount, respectively 1,003 912
Unsecuritized interests, net of $151 and $89 discount, respectively 1,810 2,080
Reserves (1 ) (115 )
Total reverse mortgage interests, net $8,886 $9,984
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Participating Interests in HMBS

Participating interests in HMBS consist of the Company's reverse mortgage interests in HECM loans which have been
transferred to GNMA and subsequently securitized through the issuance of HMBS. During the two months ended
September 30, 2018, a total of $44 in UPB was transferred to GNMA and securitized by the Company. During the
seven months ended July 31, 2018 and nine months ended September 30, 2017, a total of $198 and $416 in UPB were
transferred to GNMA and securitized by the Predecessor, respectively.

Other Interests Securitized

Other interests securitized consist of reverse mortgage interests that no longer meet HMBS program eligibility criteria
and have been repurchased out of HMBS. These reverse mortgage interests have subsequently been transferred to
private securitization trusts and are accounted for as a secured borrowing. No such securitizations occurred during the
two months ended September 30, 2018. During the seven months ended July 31, 2018, a total of $760 UPB was
securitized through Trust 2018-1 and Trust 2018-2 and a total of $284 UPB from Trust 2016-2 and Trust 2016-3 were
called and debt extinguished. Refer to Other Nonrecourse Debt in Note 10, Indebtedness, for additional information.

Unsecuritized Interests

Unsecuritized interests in reverse mortgages consists of the following.
Successor Predecessor
September December

Unsecuritized Interests 30,2018 31,2017

Repurchased HECM loans $1,512  $ 1,751
HECM related receivables 353 311
Funded borrower draws not yet securitized 68 82

REO related receivables 28 25
Purchase discount (151 ) (89 )
Total unsecuritized interests $1,810 $ 2,080

Unsecuritized interests include repurchased HECM loans for which the Company is required to repurchase from the
HMBS pool when the outstanding principal balance of the HECM loan is equal to or greater than 98% of the
maximum claim amount established at origination in accordance with HMBS program guidelines. The Company
repurchased a total of $608 of HECM loans out of GNMA HMBS securitizations during the two months ended
September 30, 2018, of which $138 were subsequently assigned to a third party in accordance with applicable
servicing agreements. The Predecessor repurchased a total of $2,439 and $3,270 of HECM loans out of GNMA
HMBS securitizations during the seven months ended July 31, 2018 and nine months ended September 30, 2017,
respectively, of which $512 and $802 were subsequently assigned to a third party in accordance with applicable
servicing agreements, respectively. To the extent a loan is not subject to applicable servicing agreements and assigned
to a third party, the loan is either subject to assignment to HUD, per contractual obligations with GNMA, liquidated
via a payoff from the borrower or liquidated via a foreclosure according to the terms of the underlying mortgage.

The Company also estimates and records an asset for probable recoveries from prior servicers for their respective
portion of the losses associated with the underlying loans that were not serviced in accordance with established
guidelines. Receivables from prior servicers totaled $25 and $22 for the Company and Predecessor's reverse loan
portfolio at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.

Purchase of Reverse Mortgage Servicing Rights and Interests

On December 1, 2016, the Predecessor executed an asset purchase agreement with a large financial institution and
acquired servicing rights and reverse mortgage interests. As part of the asset purchase agreement, the Predecessor
agreed to acquire remaining components of the reverse portfolio, primarily including servicing of whole HECM loans
and REO advances upon receiving regulatory approval. In September 2017, the Predecessor executed a mortgage
servicing rights purchase agreement and a subservicing agreement to acquire servicing rights and subservicing
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contracts on the remaining reverse portfolio. In March 2018, the Predecessor executed an asset purchase agreement to
acquire reverse mortgage interests on the subservicing contracts acquired in September 2017 referenced above,
acquiring $467 UPB of participating interests in HECM loans and $460 UPB of related HMBS obligations. The
Predecessor performed a relative fair value allocation upon the March 2018 acquisition, resulting in the
aforementioned assets and liabilities in addition to $2 of HECM related receivables and $7 of purchase discount
within unsecuritized interests. In addition, the Predecessor paid net proceeds of $1 for the acquisition of these assets
and assumption of related liabilities.
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Reserves for Reverse Mortgage Interests

The Company records reserves related to reverse mortgage interests based on potential unrecoverable costs and loss
exposures expected to be realized. Recoverability is determined based on the Company’s ability to meet U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development ("HUD") servicing guidelines and is viewed as two different
categories of expenses: financial and operational. Financial exposures are defined as the cost of doing business related
to servicing the HECM product and include potential unrecoverable costs primarily based on HUD claim guidelines
related to recoverable expenses and unfavorable changes in the appraised value of the loan collateral. Operational
exposures are defined as unrecoverable debenture interest curtailments imposed for missed HUD specified servicing
timelines.

The activity of the reserves for reverse mortgage interests is set forth below.
Successor  Predecessor

For
For the gleerio Three E:;igile Nine
Period ) dMonths I Months
. August 1 - "Y' Ended Ay g ded
Reserves for reverse mortgage interests - 1 - July
September July September 31, September
30,2018 31, 30, 2017 2018 30, 2017
2018
Balance - beginning of period $ — $117 $ 149 $115 $ 131
Provision, net 1 12 22 32 44
Write-offs — — (83 ) (18 ) (87 )
Balance - end of period $ 1 $129 $ 88 $129 $ 88

Purchase Discount for Reverse Mortgage Interests

In connection with the Merger, the Company recorded the acquired reverse mortgage interests at estimated fair value
as of the acquisition date, which resulted in a preliminary purchase premium of $58 for participating interests in
HMBS and a preliminary purchase discount of $278 for other interest securitized and unsecuritized interests. The
following table sets forth the activities of the purchase premiums and discounts for reverse mortgage interests.

Successor

For the Period August 1 -

September 30, 2018

Premium

for Discount )

Particifpatgher Discount for
Purchase premiums and discounts for reverse mortgage interests Unsecuritized

Interedtsterest

. .. Interests

in Securitized

HMBS
Balance - beginning of period $58 $ (117 ) $ (6l )
Additions R — —
Accretion/(Amortization) 3 ) — 10
Balance - end of period $55 $ (117 ) $ @151 )
31
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In connection with previous reverse mortgage portfolio acquisitions, the Predecessor recorded a purchase discount
within unsecuritized interests. The following table sets forth the activities of the purchase discounts for reverse
mortgage interests.

Predecessor

For

the  Three Egig(lie Nine

Period Months January Months
Purchase discounts for reverse mortgage interests July 1 Ended - July Ended

- July September 31 September

31, 30,2017 20’18 30, 2017

2018
Balance - beginning of period $84)% 43 ) $@®Y ) $ 43 )
Additions — (75 ) (7 ) (75 )
Accretion 2 22 14 22
Balance - end of period $82)% 96 ) $@®2 ) $ (96 )

Reverse Mortgage Interest Income

The Company accrues interest income for its participating interest in reverse mortgages based on the stated rates
underlying HECM loans and FHA guidelines. Total interest earned on the Company's reverse mortgage interests was
$72 for the two months ended September 30, 2018. Total interest earned on the Predecessor's reverse mortgage
interests was $38 and $274 for the one and seven months ended July 31, 2018, respectively, and $137 and $370 for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2017, respectively.

7. Mortgage Loans Held for Sale and Investment

Mortgage Loans Held for Sale

The Company maintains a strategy of originating and purchasing residential mortgage loan products primarily for the
purpose of selling to GSEs or other third-party investors in the secondary market on a servicing-retained basis. The
Company focuses on assisting customers currently in the Company's servicing portfolio with refinancing of loans or
new home purchases. Generally, all newly originated mortgage loans held for sale are securitized and transferred to
GSEs or delivered to third-party purchasers shortly after origination on a servicing-retained basis.

Mortgage loans held for sale are recorded at fair value as set forth below.
Successor Predecessor
September December
30,2018 31,2017
Mortgage loans held for sale - UPB$ 1,639 $ 1,837
Mark-to-market adjustment(® 42 54
Total mortgage loans held for sale $ 1,681 $ 1,891
(1) The mark-to-market adjustment is recorded in net gain on mortgage loans held for sale in the consolidated
statements of operations.

The Company accrues interest income as earned and places loans on non-accrual status after any portion of principal
or interest has been delinquent for more than 90 days. Accrued interest is recorded as interest income in the
consolidated statements of operations.

The total UPB of mortgage loans held for sale on non-accrual status was as follows:

Successor  Predecessor
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September
30, 2018
Fair
Mortgage Loans Held for Sale - UPB UPB
Value
Non-accrual $46 $ 43
32

December
31,2017
Fair
UPB Value
$66 $ 64
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From time to time, the Company exercises its right to repurchase individual delinquent loans in Ginnie Mae
securitization pools to minimize interest spread losses, to re-pool into new Ginnie Mae securitizations or to otherwise
sell to third-party investors. During the two months ended September 30, 2018, the Company repurchased $29 of
delinquent Ginnie Mae loans and securitized or sold to third-party investors $32 of previously repurchased loans.
During the seven months ended July 31, 2018 and the nine months ended September 30, 2017, the Predecessor
repurchased $118 and $236 of delinquent Ginnie Mae loans, respectively, and securitized or sold to third-party
investors $154 and $253 of previously repurchased loans, respectively.

As of September 30, 2018 and 2017, $58 and $59 of the repurchased loans have re-performed and were held in accrual
status, respectively, and remaining balances continue to be held under a nonaccrual status.
The total UPB of mortgage loans held for sale for which the Company and the Predecessor have begun formal
foreclosure proceedings was $33 and $51 as of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.
The following table details a roll forward of the change in the account balance of mortgage loans held for sale.
Successor  Predecessor
For the

For the Period Nine

Period January Months
Mortgage loans held for sale August 1 - Ended

1 - July

September 31, September

30, 2018 2018 30, 2017
Balance - beginning of period $1,514 $1,891 $ 1,788
Mortgage loans originated and purchased, net of fees 3,459 12,319 13,988
Loans sold (3,508 ) (13,255 (15,107 )
Repurchase of loans out of Ginnie Mae securitizations 223 544 943

Transfer of mortgage loans held for sale to advances/accounts receivable, net related
to claims()

2 ) (7 ) (16 )

Net transfer of mortgage loans held for sale from REO in other assets® 4 14 20
Changes in fair value (8 ) ( ) 16
Other purchase-related activities® ¢! ) 9 14
Balance - end of period $ 1,681 $1,514 $ 1,646

(> Amounts are comprised of claims made on certain government insured mortgage loans upon completion of the
REO sale.

(2) Net amounts are comprised of REO in the sales process, which are transferred to other assets, and certain
government insured mortgage REO, which are transferred from other assets upon completion of the sale so that the
claims process can begin.

() Amounts are comprised primarily of non-Ginnie Mae loan purchases and buyouts.

For the two months ended September 30, 2018, the Company received proceeds of $3,543 on the sale of mortgage
loans held for sale, resulting in gains of $35. For the one month ended July 31, 2018, the Predecessor received
proceeds of $1,891 on the sale of mortgage loans held for sale, resulting in gains of $13. For the seven months ended
July 31, 2018 and the nine months ended September 30, 2017, the Predecessor received proceeds of $13,382 and
$15,470, respectively, on the sale of mortgage loans held for sale, resulting in gains of $127 and $363, respectively.

The Company has the right to repurchase any individual loan in a Ginnie Mae securitization pool if that loan meets
certain criteria, including being delinquent greater than 90 days. The majority of Ginnie Mae repurchased loans are
repurchased solely with the intent to re-pool into new Ginnie Mae securitizations upon re-performance of the loan or
to otherwise sell to third-party investors. Therefore, these loans are classified as held for sale. The amounts
repurchased out of Ginnie Mae pools, as presented above, are primarily in connection with loan modifications and
loan resolution activity as part of the Company's contractual obligations as the servicer of the loans.
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Mortgage Loans Held for Investment
The following sets forth the composition of mortgage loans held for investment, net.

Successor
September
30,2018
Mortgage loans held for investment, net — UPB $ 161
Fair value adjustments 39 )

Total mortgage loans held for investment at fair value $ 122

Predecessor

December

31,2017
Mortgage loans held for investment, net — UPB $ 193
Transfer discount:

Non-accretable (41 )
Accretable (12 )
Allowance for loan losses (1 )
Total mortgage loans held for investment $ 139

The Predecessor recorded interest income on the transferred loans on a level-yield method. To maintain a level-yield
on these transferred loans over the estimated extended life, the Predecessor reclassified to accretable yield discount
approximately $1 of transfer discount designated as reserves for future loss for the seven months ended July 31, 2018
and nine months ended September 30, 2017. No provision for reserves was required for the nine months ended
September 30, 2017, as the fair value of the underlying collateral exceeded the carrying value of the loans, net of the
non-accretable discount.

The total UPB of mortgage loans held for investment on non-accrual status was as follows for the dates indicated.

Successor
September
30,2018
Fair
Mortgage Loans Held for Investment - UPB UPB
Value
Non-accrual $32 $ 15
The following table details a roll forward of the change in the account balance of mortgage loans held for investment.
Successor
For the
Period
Mortgage loans held for investment at fair value August 1 -
September
30,2018
Balance - beginning of period $ 125
Payments received from borrowers 2 )
Losses incurred (1 )
Changes in fair value() —
Balance - end of period $ 122

() The changes in fair value during the two months ended September 30, 2018 is less than $1.

The total UPB of mortgage loans held for investment for which the Company and the Predecessor has begun formal
foreclosure proceedings was $15 and $22 as of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.
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8. Other Assets

Other assets consist of the following.
Successor Predecessor
September December
30,2018 31,2017
Loans subject to repurchase right from Ginnie Mae $ 231 $ 218

Accrued revenues 144 148
Intangible assets 117 19
Derivative financial instruments at fair value 72 65
Prepaid expenses 31 27
REO, net 19 23
Deposits 15 19
Goodwill 3 72
Receivables from affiliates, net — 6
Other 167 82
Total other assets $ 799 $ 679

Loans Subject to Repurchase Right from Ginnie Mae

Forward loans are sold to Ginnie Mae in conjunction with the issuance of mortgage backed securities. The Company,
as the issuer of the mortgage backed securities, has the unilateral right to repurchase any individual loan in a Ginnie
Mae securitization pool if that loan meets certain criteria, including being delinquent greater than 90 days. Once the
Company has the unilateral right to repurchase a delinquent loan, it has effectively regained control over the loan and
recognizes these rights to the loan on its consolidated balance sheets and establishes a corresponding repurchase
liability regardless of the Company’s intention to repurchase the loan.

Derivative financial instruments at fair value
See Note 9, Derivative Financial Instrument, for further details.

Intangible assets
As discussed in Note 3, Acquisitions, in connection with the acquisitions of Nationstar and Assurant in 2018, the
Company recorded intangible assets of $103 and $23, respectively.

Goodwill
As discussed in Note 3, Acquisitions, in connection with the acquisition of Assurant in 2018, the Company recorded
goodwill of $3.

Accrued Revenues
Accrued revenues are primarily comprised of service fees earned but not received based upon the terms of the
Company's servicing and subservicing agreements.

REO, Net
REO, net includes $9 and $15 of REO-related receivables with government insurance at September 30, 2018 and
December 31, 2017, respectively, limiting loss exposure to the Company and the Predecessor.

Other
Other primarily includes tax receivables and non-advance related accounts receivable due from investors.

9. Derivative Financial Instrument
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Derivative instruments utilized by the Company primarily include IRLCs, LPCs, forward MBS trades, Eurodollar and
Treasury futures and interest rate swap agreements.
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Associated with the Company and Predecessor's derivatives are $3 and $1 in collateral deposits on derivative
instruments recorded in other assets on the Company and Predecessor's consolidated balance sheets as of September
30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively. The Company and the Predecessor do not offset fair value amounts
recognized for derivative instruments with amounts collected and/or deposited on derivative instruments in its
consolidated balance sheets.

The following table provides the outstanding notional balances, fair values of outstanding positions and recorded
gains/(losses).

Successor Predecessor
For
the . For the
Period )
Period
September August
January 1 -
30, 2018 1-
Septemb%ly 31,
30, 18
2018

Expiration Outstalding Recorded
Dates Notiondhlue (Losses)/Gains

Assets

Mortgage loans held for sale

Loan sale commitments 2018 $428 $69 (3.7 ) 10.5
Derivative financial instruments

IRLCs 2018 1,76557.8 (1.8 ) 0.4
Forward sales of MBS 2018 3,040 12.2 9.0 0.9

LPCs 2018 228 1.7 05 0.3
Treasury futures(!) 2018 65 — — (1.8 )
Eurodollar futures(!) 2018-2021 20 —  — —
Liabilities

Derivative financial instruments

IRLCs™) 2018 3 — — —
Forward sales of MBS 2018 413 05 (14 ) (1.0 )
LPCs 2018 320 1.5 09 0.1
Treasury futures 2018 53 0.1 0.1 (1.3 )
Eurodollar futures(!) 2020-2021 6 R — —
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Predecessor
Nine Months
September Ended
30,2017 September 30,
2017
Expiration OutftairdinRecorded
Dates Notiéahle Gains/(Losses)

Assets

Mortgage loans held for sale

Loan sale commitments(D 2017 $1 $0.1 $ —
Derivative financial instruments

IRLCs 2017 2,538.7 (23.5 )
Forward sales of MBS 2017 25247  (34.5 )
LPCs 2017 1321.0 (0.9 )
Treasury futures 2017 2552.0 2.0
Eurodollar futures(!) 2017-2021 11 — —
Interest rate swaps(! 2017 — — (0.1 )
Liabilities

Derivative financial instruments

IRLCs) 2017 7 — 1.1
Forward sales of MBS 2017 1,132 6.8

LPCs 2017 33512 0.3
Treasury futures 2017 47920 (2.0 )
Eurodollar futures(!) 2017-2021 45 — —
Interest rate swaps(! 2017 — — 0.1

() Fair values or recorded gains/(losses) of derivative instruments are less than $0.1 for the specified dates.
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10. Indebtedness

Notes Payable

Advance Facilities  Interest Rate

Nationstar agenc

! ENCY L IBOR+1.9% to
advance receivables

2.6%

trust
Nationstar mortgage
advance receivable
trust
Nationstar agency
advance financing

LIBOR+1.5% to
6.5%

LIBOR+1.9% to

facility

MBS servicer
advance facility
(2014)

MBS advance

financing facility

7.4%

CPRATE+3.0%

LIBOR + 2.5%

Advance facilities principal amount
Unamortized debt issuance costs
Advance facilities, net

Warehouse Facilities

$1,200 warehouse

Interest Rate

LIBOR+1.9% to

facility 3.8%

$1,000 warehouse = LIBOR+1.6% to
facility 2.5%

$950 warehouse LIBOR+2.0% to
facility 3.5%

$600 warchouse | 15 p 5 50,
facility

$500 warehouse LIBOR+1.5% to
facility 2.8%

$500 warehouse LIBOR+1.8% to
facility 2.8%

$500 warehouse LIBOR+2.0% to
facility 3.5%

$300 warchouse | 1R 15 30,
facility

$250 Warehouse LIBOR+2.0% to
Facility 2.3%

Maturity
Date

November
2019

August
2021

January
2019

January
2019

March 2019

Maturity
Date
November
2018
September
2019
November
2018
February
2019
August
2019
November
2018

April 2019

January
2019
September
2020

Collateral

Servicing
advance
receivables
Servicing
advance
receivables
Servicing
advance
receivables
Servicing
advance
receivables
Servicing
advance
receivables

Collateral

Mortgage loans
or MBS
Mortgage loans
or MBS
Mortgage loans
or MBS
Mortgage loans
or MBS
Mortgage loans
or MBS
Mortgage loans
or MBS
Mortgage loans
or MBS
Mortgage loans
or MBS
Mortgage loans
or MBS

Successor Predecessor
September 30, December 31,
2018 2017
iilljssiltty Outstan (;l%lizféal Outstandigll%g?eegal
$575  $232 $271 $416  $492
325 264 333 230 287
150 67 78 102 117
125 33 145 44 140
— — — 63 64
596  $827 855 $ 1,100
$596 5855
Successor Predecessor
September 30, December 31,
2018 2017
iill)ssiltty Outstan (;l%liztee;al Outstandigll(%)ggteegal
$1,200 $664 $730  $889  $960
1,000 220 225 299 308
950 661 735 721 785
600 263 285 333 347
500 160 164 233 239
500 291 320 305 337
500 218 233 246 272
300 89 111 116 141
250 177 182 — —
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$200 warehouse
facility

$200 warehouse
facility

$150 warehouse
facility

$50 warehouse
facility

$40 warehouse
facility

Warehouse facilities principal amount
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LIBOR+1.6%

LIBOR+4.0%

LIBOR+4.3%

LIBOR+4.5%

LIBOR+3.0%

Unamortized debt issuance costs
Warehouse facilities, net

Pledged Collateral:
Mortgage loans, net

Reverse mortgage interests, net
MSR and other collateral

38

April 2019

June 2020

December
2018
August
2020
November
2018

Mortgage loans
or MBS
Mortgage loans
or MBS
Mortgage loans
or MBS
Mortgage loans
or MBS
Mortgage loans
or MBS

200

200

150

50

40

43 44
100 198

— 98

— 4

2 3

2,888  $3,372
$_2,888

$1,595 $ 1,481
1,193 1,342
100 549

80 81

50 50

10 10

4 6
3,286 $3,536
(1 )

$3,285

$1,852 $1,680
1,434 1,575
— 281
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Unsecured Senior Notes

Unsecured senior notes consist of the following.

Successor Predecessor
September 30, 2018 December 31, 2017
$950

face

value,

8.125%

interest

flate 950 $ —
payable

semi-annually,

due

July

20230

$750

face

value,

9.125%

interest

7410 —
payable

semi-annually,

due

July

20260

$600

face

value,

6.500%

interest

a2 595
payable

semi-annually,

due

July

2021

$300

face

value,

6.500%

interest

P46 206
payable

semi-annually,

due

June

2022
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$475

face

value,
6.500%
interest
rate
payable
semi-annually,
due
August
20183
$400

face

value,
7.875%
interest
rate
payable
semi-annually,
due
October
20204
$375

face

value,
9.625%
interest
rate
payable
semi-annually,
due

May
20194
Unsecured
senior
Aptes
principal
amount
Unamortized
debt
issuance
costs,

(et )

of

premium,

and

discount
Unsecured
%enior 2,457
notes,

net

364

397

323

1,885

(11

$
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1,874
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(1) On July 13, 2018, Merger Sub issued $950 aggregate principal amount of the 8.125% Notes due 2023 and $750
aggregate principal amount of the 9.125% Notes due 2026. The proceeds from the New Notes were used, together
with the proceeds from the issuance of WMIH’s common stock and WMIH’s cash and restricted cash on hand, to
consummate the Merger with Nationstar and the refinancing of certain Nationstar’s existing debt and to pay related
fees and expenses. At the consummation of the acquisition, Merger Sub merged with and into Nationstar with
Nationstar assuming the obligations under the New Notes.

) In June 2018, the Predecessor entered into a supplemental indenture to, among other things, modify the definition
of “Change of Control” to provide that the Merger will not constitute a change of control which would otherwise trigger
redemption obligations.

() The note of the Predecessor was paid off in August 2018.

) The notes of the Predecessor were redeemed in August 2018.

The indentures for the unsecured senior notes contain various covenants and restrictions that limit the issuer(s) and
restricted subsidiaries ability to incur additional indebtedness, pay dividends, make certain investments, create liens,
consolidate, merge or sell substantially all of their assets or enter into certain transactions with affiliates. The
indentures contain certain events of default, including (subject, in some cases, to customary cure periods and
materiality thresholds) defaults based on (i) the failure to make payments under the applicable indenture when due, (ii)
breach of covenants, (iii) cross-defaults to certain other indebtedness, (iv) certain bankruptcy or insolvency events, (v)
material judgments and (vi) invalidity of material guarantees.

The indentures for the unsecured senior notes provide that the Company may redeem all or a portion of the notes prior
to certain fixed dates by paying a make-whole premium plus accrued and unpaid interest, to the redemption dates. In
addition, the Company may redeem all or a portion of the unsecured senior notes at any time on or after certain fixed
dates at the applicable redemption prices set forth in the indentures plus accrued and unpaid interest, to the redemption
dates. During the two months ended September 30, 2018, the Company redeemed $659 in principal of outstanding
notes. Additionally, the Company repaid $364 in principal of outstanding notes which matured during the two months
ended September 30, 2018. The Company repurchased $26, $60, and $120 in principal of outstanding notes during the
three months ended September 30, 2017, seven months ended July 31, 2018, and nine months ended September 30,
2017, respectively, resulting in a loss of $1, $2, and $3, respectively. No notes were repurchased during the two
months ended September 30, 2018 and one month ended July 31, 2018.

Additionally, the indentures provide that on or before certain fixed dates, the Company may redeem (x) in the case of
the New Notes, up to 40%, or (y) in the case of the other series of unsecured senior notes, up to 35% of the aggregate
principal amount of the unsecured senior notes with the net proceeds of certain equity offerings at fixed redemption
prices, plus accrued and unpaid interest, to the redemption dates, subject to compliance with certain conditions.

The ratios included in the indentures for the unsecured senior notes are incurrence-based compared to the customary
ratio covenants that are often found in credit agreements that require a company to maintain a certain ratio.
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As of September 30, 2018, the expected maturities of the Company's unsecured senior notes based on contractual

maturities are as follows.

Year Ending December 31, Amount

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
Thereafter
Total

Other Nonrecourse Debt

$—

592
206
1,700
$2,498

Other nonrecourse debt consists of the following.

Successor Predecessor

September 3(Pecember 31,
2018 2017
Issue Date Maturity Class of Note Securltlz%lutstanding Outstanding
Date Amount

Participating interest financing(!) — — — $ —$ 6,021 $ 7,111
Securitization of nonperforming HECM
loans
Trust 2016-2 June 2016  June 2026 A, M1, M2 — — 94
Trust 2016-3 August 2016 August 2026 A, MI,M2  — — 138
Trust 2017-1 May 2017 May 2027 A, M1, M2 193 151 213

September  September
Trust 2017-2 2017 2007 A, MI,M2 308 258 365

A, M1, M2,
Trust 2018-1 March 2018 March 2028 M3, M4, M5 348 329 —
A, M1, M2,

Trust 2018-2 August 2018 August 2028 M3, M4, M5 298 292 —

November  October
Nonrecourse debt - legacy assets 2009 2039 A 112 32 42
Other nonrecourse debt principal 7.083 7.963
amount
Unamortized debt issuance costs, net of 22 51

premium, and issuance discount®
Other nonrecourse debt, net

$ 7,165 $ 8,014

(1) Amounts represent the Company's participating interest in GNMA HMBS securitized portfolios.
(@) The Predecessor amount includes a premium of $62 as of December 31, 2017.
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Participating Interest Financing

Participating interest financing represents the obligation of HMBS pools to third-party security holders. The
Predecessor and Company issue HMBS in connection with the securitization of borrower draws and accrued interest
on HECM loans. Proceeds are received in exchange for securitized advances on the HECM loan amounts transferred
to GNMA, and the Company retains a beneficial interest (referred to as a "participating interest") in the securitization
trust in which the HECM loans and HMBS obligations are held and assume both issuer and servicer responsibilities in
accordance with GNMA HMBS program guidelines. Monthly cash flows generated from the HECM loans are used to
service the HMBS obligations. The interest rate is based on the underlying HMBS rate with a range of 2.4% to 7.0%.

Securitizations of Nonperforming HECM Loans

From time to time, the Company securitizes its interests in non-performing reverse mortgages. The transactions
provide investors with the ability to invest in a pool of both non-performing HECM loans secured by
one-to-four-family residential properties and a pool of REO properties acquired through foreclosure of a deed in lieu
of foreclosure in connection with HECM loans that are covered by FHA insurance. The transactions provide the
Company with access to liquidity for the non-performing HECM loan portfolio, ongoing servicing fees, and potential
residual returns. The transactions are structured as secured borrowings with the reverse mortgage loans included in the
consolidated financial statements as reverse mortgage interests and the related financing included in other nonrecourse
debt. Interest is accrued at a rate of 2.0% to 6.5% on the outstanding securitized notes and recorded as interest expense
in consolidated statements of operations. The HECM securitizations are callable with expected weighted average lives
of less than one to three years. The Company may re-securitize the previously called loans from earlier HECM
securitizations to achieve a lower cost of funds.

Nonrecourse Debt — Legacy Assets

During November 2009, the Company completed the securitization of approximately $222 of Asset-Backed Securities
("ABS"), which was accounted for as a secured borrowing. This structure resulted in the Company carrying the
securitized mortgage loans in its consolidated balance sheets and recognizing the asset-backed certificates acquired by
third parties. The principal and interest on these notes are paid using the cash flows from the underlying mortgage
loans, which serve as collateral for the debt. The interest rate paid on the outstanding securities is 7.5%, which is
subject to an available funds cap. The total outstanding principal balance on the underlying mortgage loans serving as
collateral for the debt was approximately $165 and $181 at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.
The UPB on the outstanding loans was $32 and $42 at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively, and
the carrying value of the nonrecourse debt was $32 and $37, respectively.

Financial Covenants

The Company and the Predecessor’s borrowing arrangements and credit facilities contain various financial covenants
which primarily relate to required tangible net worth amounts, liquidity reserves, leverage requirements, and
profitability requirements. The Predecessor performed an evaluation of its mortgage servicing liabilities and recorded
a change in estimate for the month ended July 31, 2018. As a result of this charge, the Predecessor was unable to meet
the profitability requirement in one of its outstanding warehouse facilities. The Company asked for, and amended the
agreement from this financial institution on this profitability requirement for the period ended September 30, 2018. As
a result of this amendment, the Company is in compliance with its required financial covenants.

The Company is required to maintain a minimum tangible net worth of at least $682 as of each quarter-end related to

its outstanding Master Repurchase Agreements on its outstanding repurchase facilities. As of September 30, 2018, the
Company is in compliance with these minimum tangible net worth requirements.
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11. Payables and Accrued Liabilities

Payables and accrued liabilities consist of the following.

Successor Predecessor
September 30, December
2018 31,2017
Payables to servicing and subservicing investors $ 530 $ 516
Loans subject to repurchase from Ginnie Mae 231 218
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 165 99
Payables to GSEs and securitized trusts 95 92
Accrued bonus and payroll 89 82
Accrued legal expenses 65 25
Payable to insurance carriers and insurance cancellation reserves 61 61
Accrued interest 61 62
MSR purchases payable including advances 21 10
Repurchase reserves 9 9
Taxes 8 36
Lease obligations 5 24
Derivative financial instruments at fair value 2 5
Total payables and accrued liabilities $ 1,342 $ 1,239

Payables to Servicing and Subservicing Investors and Payables to GSEs and Securitized Trusts

Payables to servicing and subservicing investors, GSEs and securitized trusts represent amounts due to investors,
GSEs and securitized trusts in connection with loans serviced that are paid from collections of the underlying loans,
insurance proceeds or proceeds from property disposal.

Loans Subject to Repurchase from Ginnie Mae
See Note 8, Other Assets, for a description of assets and liabilities related to loans subject to repurchase from Ginnie
Mae.

Derivative financial instruments at fair value
See Note 9, Derivative Financial Instrument, for further details.

Accounts Payables and Other Accrued Liabilities
Accounts payables and other accrued liabilities are primarily comprised of liabilities related to various vendor and
servicing activities.

Payables to Insurance Carriers and Insurance Cancellation Reserves

Payables to insurance carriers and insurance cancellation reserves consist of insurance premiums received from
borrower payments awaiting disbursement to the insurance carrier and/or amounts due to third-party investors on
liquidated loans.
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Repurchase Reserves
The activity of the repurchase reserves is set forth below.
Successor  Predecessor

For
For the the .Three For. the Nine
. Per Period
Period Tuly onths January Months
Repurchase Reserves August 1 - 1. Ended 1 - July Ended
September JUllySeptember 31, September
30, 2018 31, 30, 2017 2018 30, 2017
2018
Balance - beginning of period $ 9 $9% 14 $ 9 $ 18
Provisions 1 — 2 3 5
Releases (1 ) — — 3 ) (6 )
Charge-offs — — (1 ) — 2 )
Balance - end of period $ 9 $9 8% 15 $ 9 $ 15

The provision for repurchases represents an estimate of losses to be incurred on the repurchase of loans or
indemnification of purchaser's losses related to forward loans. Certain sale contracts and GSE standards require the
Company to repurchase a loan or indemnify the purchaser or insurer for losses if a borrower fails to make initial loan
payments or if the accompanying mortgage loan fails to meet certain customary representations and warranties, such
as the manner of origination, the nature and extent of underwriting standards.

In the event of a breach of the representations and warranties, the Company may be required to either repurchase the
loan or indemnify the purchaser for losses it sustains on the loan. In addition, an investor may request that the
Company refund a portion of the premium paid on the sale of mortgage loans if a loan is prepaid within a certain
amount of time from the date of sale. The Company records a reserve for estimated losses associated with loan
repurchases, purchaser indemnification and premium refunds. The provision for repurchase losses is charged against
net gain on mortgage loans held for sale. A release of repurchase reserves is recorded when the Company's assessment
reveals that previously recorded reserves are no longer needed.

A selling representation and warranty framework was introduced by the GSEs in 2013 and enhanced in 2014 that
helps address concerns of loan sellers with respect to loan repurchase risk. Under the framework, a GSE will not
exercise its remedies, including the issuance of repurchase requests, for breaches of certain selling representations and
warranties if a mortgage meets certain eligibility requirements. For loans sold to GSEs on or after January 1, 2013,
repurchase risk for Home Affordable Refinance Program ("HARP") loans is lowered if the borrower stays current on
the loan for 12 months and representation and warranty risks are limited for non-HARP loans that stay current for 36
months.

The Company regularly evaluates the adequacy of repurchase reserves based on trends in repurchase and
indemnification requests, actual loss experience, settlement negotiation, estimated future loss exposure and other
relevant factors including economic conditions. Current loss rates have significantly declined attributable to stronger
underwriting standards and due to the falloff of loans underwritten prior to mortgage loan crisis period prior to 2008.
The Company believes its reserve balance as of September 30, 2018 is sufficient to cover loss exposure associated
with repurchase contingencies.

12. Securitizations and Financings
Variable Interest Entities (VIE)
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In the normal course of business, the Company enters into various types of on- and off-balance sheet transactions with
SPEs determined to be VIEs, which primarily consist of securitization trusts established for a limited purpose.
Generally, these SPEs are formed for the purpose of securitization transactions in which the Company transfers assets
to an SPE, which then issues to investors various forms of debt obligations supported by those assets.

The Company has determined that the SPEs created in connection with the (i) Nationstar Home Equity Loan Trust
2009-A, (ii) Nationstar Mortgage Advance Receivables Trust (NMART), (iii) Nationstar Agency Advance Financing
Trust (NAAFT) and (iv) Nationstar Advance Agency Receivables Trust (NAART) should be consolidated as the
Company is the primary beneficiary of each of these entities. Also, the Company consolidated four reverse mortgage
SPEs as it is the primary beneficiary of each of these entities. These SPEs include the Nationstar HECM Loan Trusts.
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A summary of the assets and liabilities of the Company's transactions with VIEs included in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements is presented below for the dates indicated.

Successor Predecessor
September 30, 2018 December 31, 2017
Transfers
Transferﬁ
A guers